
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 
November 25, 2019 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation – Tom Bell; Vestavia Hills Chaplain

4. Pledge Of Allegiance

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition

6. Proclamation – Trafficking Free Zone

7. City Manager’s Report

8. Councilors’ Reports

9. Approval Of Minutes – November 13, 2019 (Regular Meeting)

Old Business 

10. Resolution Number 5202 – A Resolution To Provide Tier I Benefits To Tier II Plan

Members Pursuant To Alabama Act 2019-132   (public hearing)

11. Ordinance Number 2502-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2502 To

Further Amend Chapter 8 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Entitled “License

And Business Regulations” To Add An Article To Establish A NAICS Code, Operating

Standards And Definitions For Mobile Food Units Operating Within The City Of

Vestavia Hills, Alabama And To Provide For Penalties For Violation Thereof   (public

hearing)

12. Ordinance Number 2885 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3516 Squire Lane; Brook And

Celine Russell, Owners   (public hearing)

13. Ordinance Number 2886 – Rezoning – 3516 Squire Lane, Rezone From VH E-2 To VH

R-1; Brook And Celine Russell, Owners  (public hearing)

14. Ordinance Number 2887 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 929 Mountain Branch Circle;

Lot 40, Mountain Branch Sub; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings, Owners    (public

hearing)

15. Ordinance Number 2888 – Rezoning – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; Lot 40, Mountain

Branch Sub; Rezone From JC R-1 To VH R-2; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings

(Owners)  (public hearing)

16. Ordinance Number 2889 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2790 Acton Place; Hugh

Humphrey, Owner    (public hearing)



17. Ordinance Number 2890 – Rezoning – 2790 Acton Place; Rezone From JC R-1 To VH

R-2; Hugh Humphrey, Owner   (public hearing)

18. Ordinance Number 2891 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5,

Altadena Valley Country Club; Mark And Jennifer Weldon  (public hearing)

19. Ordinance Number 2892 – Rezoning – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, Altadena Valley

Country Club; Rezone from Jefferson County Agriculture to VH A; Mark and Jennifer

Weldon    (public hearing)

20. Ordinance Number 2893 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2429 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36,

Res Of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 & 48, Buckhead, Second Sector; William Ennis

(public hearing)

21. Ordinance Number 2894 – Rezoning – 2429 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, Res Of Lots 18, 19,

20, 33, 34, 46, 47 & 48, Buckhead, Second Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2

To VH R-1; William Ennis   (public hearing)

22. Ordinance Number 2895 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Paul

And Gloria Russell    (public hearing)

23. Ordinance Number 2896 – Rezoning – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Rezone From JC E-1 To

VH E-2; Paul And Gloria Russell   (public hearing)

24. Ordinance Number 2897 – Rezoning – 4222 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From VH B-3

To Vestavia Hills B-1.2 For Construction Of A Commercial Building With A

Residential Unit On 2nd Floor; Timothy Higgins, Owner    (public hearing)

25. Ordinance Number 2899 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To

Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Jefferson County Commission To Join A

Jefferson County GIS Consortium For The Utilization Of GIS Planimetric Data Over

The Next 3 Years   (public hearing)

New Business 

26. Resolution Number 5206 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Transfer 
Fifty Percent Of The FY2019 General Fund Surplus To The City’s Capital Projects Fund

27. Ordinance Number 2902 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Maddox Enterprises, LP And The City Of 
Vestavia Hills In Order To Forgive A Portion Of A Lien And Authorizing 

The Development Of Lot 1 Along With Designating Certain Prohibited Uses On Lot 2 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

28. Resolution Number 5207 – A Resolution Declaring Water Damage At The Cahaba

Heights Police Substation As An Emergency And Authorizing The City Manager To

Take All Actions Necessary To Repair Said Damage  (public hearing)

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

29. Ordinance Number 2900 – Rezoning – 2926 Columbiana Road (2927 Columbiana

Court); Elevation Apartments (Formerly Windcliff Apartments); Rezone From

Jefferson County R-4 (Multi-Family Residential) To Vestavia Hills R-5 (Multi-Family

Residential), Compatible Zoning From A 1983 Annexation; ECG Vestavia, LLC;

Summit Vestavia I, LLC; Summit Vestavia II, LLC As Tenants In Common, Owners

(public hearing scheduled for December 16, 2019)

30. Ordinance Number 2901 – Rezoning For A Revised Site Plan And A Conditional Use

Approval – 3127 Blue Lake Drive; Lot 10A-, Resurvey Of Lots 8, 9 & 10, Topfield

Subdivision And Lot 11, Topfield Subdivision; The Purpose Of The Request Is To

Revise A Site Plan Of A B-1.2 Zoned Development And A Conditional Use Approval

To Allow An Additional 2,500 Square Foot To Allow For A Total 12,500 Square Foot

Building; SWBP Investments, LLC, Owners     (public hearing scheduled for
December 16, 2019)

31. Citizens Comments

32. Motion for Adjournment



WHEREAS, Birmingham, Alabama has been chosen to host The World Games 2021, an 
international sporting event that will bring thousands of athletes, as well as 
countless tourists and media, to the Birmingham metro area; and 

 
WHEREAS, an increase in tourists seeking entertainment, including commercial sex, increases 

the potential risk for exploitation and human trafficking.  Traffickers are 
opportunistic hunters and see major sporting events as an opportunity for huge 
profits with little risk of penalty or punishment; and   

 
WHEREAS, human trafficking is a form of modern-day slavery in which victims are forced to 

work in various forms of exploitation, including debt bondage, forced marriage, 
labor & commercial sexual exploitation, that are induced through force, fraud or 
coercion; and  

 
WHEREAS, due to its isolating nature, many individuals are unaware that trafficking exists in 

their neighborhoods so the first step in eliminating human trafficking in our 
community is to educate others and make them aware of how to spot it; and  

 
WHEREAS,   Vestavia Hills is committed to becoming a TraffickingFree Zone by ensuring that 

our community is  prepared to recognize signs of human trafficking as well as 
implement and enforce a zero-tolerance policy against any act which may support 
human trafficking; and  

 
WHEREAS, Vestavia Hills will continue its efforts to combat the commercial sexual 

exploitation of our children and vulnerable adults and mitigate the associated 
public safety, economic and health risks to our community, in collaboration with 
the Child Trafficking Solutions Project, the U.S. Institute Against Human 
Trafficking, and other anti-human trafficking organizations.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama a  

 
 HUMAN TRAFFICKINGFREE ZONE  

 
 and ask all citizens of Vestavia Hills to join us in promoting a shift away from the 

culture of tolerance toward human trafficking.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 25th day of November 2019. 
 
__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 13, 2019 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
rescheduled from November 11, 2019, following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama 
law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor ** 
Paul Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

**arrived at 6:20 PM 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 

Butch Williams; Vestavia Hills Senior Chaplain, led the invocation followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  

 The Mayor stated that only one application was received for the upcoming vacancy of the
Vestavia Hills Library Board and six applications for Parks and Recreation Board.
Interviews will be held on the 26th of November for these vacancies.

 Mr. Pierce recognized Board Member James Robinson who was in attendance
representing the Chamber of Commerce.

 Mr. Weaver announced that the Planning and Zoning Commission will meet in regular
session tomorrow evening at 6 PM in the Council Chamber here at City Hall.

 Mr. Weaver welcomed Park Board Mitch Bevill to the meeting.  He announced that the
Parks and and Recreation Board’s regular meeting will be held on November 19, 2019
beginning at 7 AM in the Executive Conference Room here at City Hall.



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 2 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 Mr. Downes showed the Council and the audience the projected year-end capital balance
for FY 2019 with a balance of almost 1.4 million.  He stated that the City has had a great
year.  Mr. Downes stated he would like to suggest taking that healthy fund balance and
transfer some of it to the capital fund to match the expected 20% matches of the federal
funded budgets that are upcoming.  He stated that will be a future decision of the Council
and he wanted to introduce it to them as food for thought.

o The Mayor stated that he would feel better if the City positioned the matches of
Massey Road and the Pedestrian Bridge over 31 so this sounds like a viable
proposition.

COUNCILOR REPORTS 

 Mr. Pierce stated that the keynote speaker at the Chamber luncheon was Tony Cooper,
Executive Director of the Jimmie Hale Mission.  He saluted Mr. Cooper for his work with
Jimmie Hale missions and the community.

 Mr. Pierce highlighted several upcoming events from Holidays in the Hills including Shop
Dine and Play Bingo, November 1-25; Deck the Heights, November 14; Christmas Tree
Lighting, December 3; Breakfast with Santa, December 7; and the City Christmas Parade
at Liberty Park Sports Complex on December 8.  He encouraged everyone to eat and shop
locally in Vestavia Hills.

 The Mayor stated that the Veterans event held last Thursday was a tremendous success .
He stated that it highlighted the history of four WWII veterans.  He looks forward to this
event becoming an annual event.

o Mr. Weaver echoed the Mayor’s comments stating that the Veterans Day event
was wonderful.  He commended everyone who put this event together and stated
that the presentation was very well done and enjoyed by all.

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director, presented the financial reports for FY2019.  He read 
and explained the closing balances. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The minutes of the following meeting were presented for approval:  October 28, 2019 
(Work Session). 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the October 28, 2019 (Work 
Session); and approve them as amended was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 3 
 

   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the October 28, 2019 

(Regular Meeting); and approve them as amended was by Mr. Weaver seconded 
by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5194 
 

Resolution Number 5194 – Vacation – Lot Line/Utility Easements Located On Lots 1, 2, 3 
And 4, Block 2, Meadowlawn Estates; 1st Addition; Tiebo, LLC, Owners  
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5194 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that these easements exists under a commercial business in Cahaba 
Heights.  The utilities and engineer have signed off and this cleans up that lot. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5200 
 

Resolution Number 5200 – A Resolution To Reinstate Incentives For Serra Automotive 
Group And Anthony And Mary Margaret Serra For The Purpose Of 
Construction Of Land And Facility Improvements And Conveyance Of 
Property To Be Used For Public Purposes Within The Massey Road Project   
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5200 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head.  
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Downes gave a brief background of this request on a dealership located at the south 
end of Montgomery Highway, owned by Serra Automotive Group.  In 2012, a previous Council 
entered into an incentive agreement and later, the dealership experienced some flooding and 
closed. Since then, the dealership has done flood mitigation on the property to raise a portion of 
the property above flood elevation and lowering another portion to allow for water retention in 
flooding events in an effort to reopen.  This request is to reinstate the old agreement to commence 
at the day the dealership opens or is validated by the courts.  This agreement was amended to 
include some donation of property on the other side of the creek to be utilized by the City in the 
Massey Road project.   
 
 **Mrs. Cook entered the meeting at 6:20 PM. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the projected opening of the dealership. 
 
 Alton Parker, attorney representing the Serras, explained that some landscaping needs to 
occur and then the paving of the parking lot.  Once finished, high-end vehicles will be sold from 
the lot and they anticipate really good sales from the property.  He stated they hope to give the 
property toward Massey Road to the City soon. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about DRB review. 
 
 Ms. Leavings stated that they have already been to DRB. 
 
 Keith Andrews, 3026 Massey Road, stated that there is signage availability but does the 
incentive follow if another dealership opens. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained an assignment clause in the agreement and the intent would be to 
keep an active business operating on this property. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the reassignment clause of the agreement. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2880 
 

Ordinance Number 2880 - An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-4 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Entitled “Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba 
Heights” To Rename The Park As “Cahaba Heights Park”  (public hearing) 

 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 5 
 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2880 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Head.  

 
 Mr. Downes stated that the Parks and Recreation Board recommended renaming this park 
to be more encompassing and like other parks. Signage will include the city’s logo and marketed 
to show it’s in the City and an all-inclusive park rather than just fields. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5196 
 

Resolution Number 5196 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2312 St. Joseph Road; Lot 22, St. Joseph 
Retreat; Vincent And Julie Pappalardo, Owners  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5196 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.  
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the annexation report for this property with no adverse information given. 
 
 Mr. and Mrs. Pappalardo were present in regard to this request. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for both this resolution and the following 
ordinance.  There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2881 
 

Ordinance Number 2881 – Annexation – Overnight – 2312 St. Joseph Road; Lot 22, St. 
Joseph Retreat; Vincent And Julie Poppalardo, Owners    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2881 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 6 
 

 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5197 
 

Resolution Number 5197 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2801 Gresham Drive; Lot 13, Gresham 
Woods Subdivision; Carla And Robert Ingram Jr., Owners   (public hearing) 

 
 This request was withdrawn by the applicant. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2881 
 

Ordinance Number 2881 – Annexation – Overnight – 2801 Gresham Drive; Lot 13, 
Gresham Woods Subdivision; Carla And Robert Ingram Jr., Owners   (public 
hearing) 

 
 This request was withdrawn by the applicant. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5198 
 

Resolution Number 5198 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2637 Alta Glen Drive; Jimit Parekh And 
Pallavi Shah, Owners   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5198 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head.  
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the annexation report for this property with no adverse information given 
other than a narrow road. 
 
 Pallavi Shah was present in regard to this request. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing for both this resolution and the following 
ordinance.  There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 7 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2883 
 

Ordinance Number 2883 – Annexation – Overnight – 2637 Alta Glen Drive; Jimit Parekh 
And Pallavi Shah, Owners   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2883 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.  
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2884 
 

Ordinance Number 2884 – An Ordinance Granting A Non-Exclusive Right-Of-Way Use 
Agreement To Level 3 Communications, LLC, For The Purpose Of 
Constructing And Maintaining A Fiber-Optic Transmission Line Within 
Certain Public Rights-Of-Way Within The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama     
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2884 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that Level 3 Communications has approached the City for a 
franchise agreement for installation of fiber optic facilities within various rights-of-way of the 
City.  He showed a map which depicts the area.  Mr. Boone has reviewed the proposed agreement 
and finds no issues. 
 
 Mayor Curry opened the floor for public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5201 
 

Resolution Number 5201 – A Resolution Changing The Regular Meeting Of The Vestavia 
Hills City Council From December 23, 2019 To December 16, 2019 Beginning 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 8 
 

At 6 PM And Rescheduling The December 16, 2019 Work Session From 6 PM 
To 5 PM 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5201 was by Mr. Head seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.   
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5203 
 

Resolution Number 5203 – A Resolution To Allow A New Type Of Employee Contribution 
To The City’s Deferred Compensation Plan Known As A Roth Contribution 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5203 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a 100% employee contribution plan for retirements which 
allows an employee to contribute should he/she choose to do so. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5204 
 

Resolution Number 5204 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver All Agreements And Documents Necessary In Order To Secure 
Water Main Extensions And Three Fire Hydrants At Wald Park 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5204 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated this was reviewed by the design team and recommended for approval. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 9 
 

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5205 
 

Resolution Number 5205 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement With The North 
Alabama Cooperative Purchasing Association 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5205 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the FY2020 budget allowed the purchase of vehicles and since the 
state’s bid list is behind, the only option found would be to purchase through this coop.  He stated 
that the City belongs to several cooperatives like this.  This allows the City to get into line for 
first come first purchase. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2898 
 

Ordinance Number 2898 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver Agreements With The Vestavia Hills Board Of 
Education Regarding Access To The School System’s Live Fee Security 
System 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2898 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head.   
 
 Mr. Downes stated that these agreements allow the City’s police department and SRO’s 
are treated as school employees to view live feeds of various school cameras. 
 
 There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 10 
 

 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor passed the gavel and Mr. Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem, who announced that the 
following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next 
regular meeting on November 25, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Resolution Number 5202 – A Resolution To Provide Tier I Benefits To Tier II Plan 
Members Pursuant To Alabama Act 2019-132   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2502-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2502 To 
Further Amend Chapter 8 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Entitled “License 
And Business Regulations” To Add An Article To Establish A NAICS Code, Operating 
Standards And Definitions For Mobile Food Units Operating Within The City Of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama And To Provide For Penalties For Violation Thereof   (public 
hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2885 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3516 Squire Lane; Brook And 
Celine Russell, Owners   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2886 – Rezoning – 3516 Squire Lane, Rezone From VH E-2 To 
VH R-1; Brook And Celine Russell, Owners  (public hearing)      

 Ordinance Number 2887 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; 
Lot 40, Mountain Branch Sub; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings, Owners    (public 
hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2888 – Rezoning – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; Lot 40, Mountain 
Branch Sub; Rezone From JC R-1 To VH R-2; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings 
(Owners)  (public hearing)    

 Ordinance Number 2889 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2790 Acton Place; Hugh 
Humphrey, Owner    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2890 – Rezoning – 2790 Acton Place; Rezone From JC R-1 To VH 
R-2; Hugh Humphrey, Owner   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2891 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, 
Altadena Valley Country Club; Mark And Jennifer Weldon  (public hearing)    

 Ordinance Number 2892 – Rezoning – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, Altadena Valley 
Country Club; Rezone from Jefferson County Agriculture to VH A; Mark and Jennifer 
Weldon    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2893 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2429 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, 
Res Of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 & 48, Buckhead, Second Sector; William Ennis    
(public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2894 – Rezoning – 2429 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, Res Of Lots 18, 19, 
20, 33, 34, 46, 47 & 48, Buckhead, Second Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-
2 To VH R-1; William Ennis   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2895 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Paul 
And Gloria Russell    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2896 – Rezoning – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Rezone From JC E-1 To 
VH E-2; Paul And Gloria Russell   (public hearing)    



City Council Minutes 
November 13, 2019 

Page 11 
 

 Ordinance Number 2897 – Rezoning – 4222 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From VH B-
3 To Vestavia Hills B-1.2 For Construction Of A Commercial Building With A 
Residential Unit On 2nd Floor; Timothy Higgins, Owner    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2899 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Jefferson County Commission To Join 
A Jefferson County GIS Consortium For The Utilization Of GIS Planimetric Data Over 
The Next 3 Years   (public hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 At 6:48 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:49 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5201 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5202 

A RESOLUTION TO PROVIDE TIER I BENEFITS TO TIER II PLAN 
MEMBERS UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF ALABAMA ACT 2019-132 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Act 2019-132, employers who participate in the 

Employees' Retirement System pursuant to Ala. Code §36-27-6 may elect to provide Tier I 

retirement benefits to Tier 11 plan members, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills participates in the Employees' Retirement System 

pursuant to Ala. Code §36-27-6 and wishes to improve retirement benefits for its Tier II plan 

members; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the City of Vestavia Hills elects to 

provide Tier I retirement benefits to its Tier II plan members, subject to approval by the 

Employees’ Retirement System Board of Control; that, if approved, such election shall be effective 

the following fiscal year and is irrevocable. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Vestavia Hills has reviewed the actuarial 

cost estimates provided by the Employees' Retirement System for such election and agrees to pay 

any resulting increases in the employer contribution rate. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that beginning in the Month that such election is 

effective, the City of Vestavia Hills’s Tier II plan members shall contribute 7.5% of their earnable 

compensation to the Employees’ Retirement System and the City of Vestavia Hills’ Tier II plan 

members who are firefighters or law enforcement officers, as defined by Ala. Code § 36-27-59(a), 

shall contribute 8.5% of their earnable compensation to the Employees Retirement System, as 

required by Act 2019-132.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Vestavia Hills has not increased the 

member contribution rates for its Tier I members as provided by Act 2011-676 and, as required by 

Ala. Code § 36-27-6.5, the City of Vestavia Hills has submitted to the Employees’ Retirement 

System a plan to increase such rages as referenced as Exhibit A to this Resolution Number 5201. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 



Resolution Number 5201 
Page 2 

 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry, 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5202



Ordinance Number 2502-A 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2502-A 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2502 TO 
FURTHER AMEND CHAPTER 8 OF THE VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF 
ORDINANCES ENTITLED “LICENSES AND BUSINESS 
REGULATIONS” TO ADD AN ARTICLE TO ESTABLISH A NAICS 
CODE, OPERATING STANDARDS AND DEFINITIONS FOR MOBILE 
FOOD UNITS OPERATING WITHIN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA AND TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION 
THEREOF 

WITNESSETH THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2502-A WHICH IS CONSIDERED 

AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 25th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2019. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2014, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2498 to adopt a Code of Ordinances for the City of 

Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 8 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinance, (“City Code”) entitled 

“Licenses and Business Regulations” sets forth the requirements for operation of commercial 

businesses within the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, on July 14, 2014, the City Council adopted and approved Ordinance Number 

2502 to establish a NAICS code, operating standards and definitions for mobile food units 

operating within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that it is in the best public 

interest to further establish standards for the operation of Mobile Food Units which are intended 

to promote the public health, safety and welfare by amending Article 8 to establish standards and 

a definition for the operation of Mobile Food Units within the City to be detailed and amended in 

its entirety, as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Chapter 8 of the City’s Code is hereby amended for the addition of the following:

Article X - Establishing Standards and Definitions for Mobile Food Units

Section 1.  Definitions.

  Mobile Food Unit – A self-contained vehicle, trailer or pushcart that serves 

prepared foods or prepares and serves food in various locations of the City. 



Ordinance Number 2502-A 
Page 2 

 

 Section 2.  Standards and Requirements for Operation. 

1. All Mobile Food Unit operators shall obtain an annual business license 

issued by the City of Vestavia Hills Finance Department prior to 

commencing any food sales in the City.  Said license shall be assigned the 

NAICS code 722330 and shall be subject to the Schedule 5A as detailed in 

Section 8-37, License Classifications.   

2. In addition to an annual business license all Mobile Food Unit operators 

shall obtain an annual operating permit for each unit to be issued by City of 

Vestavia Hills City Clerk, unless otherwise exempted in this Chapter.  

Permits shall be issued for the period beginning January 1 and ending 

December 31 of each year.  This permit shall be posted in a visible location 

on the Mobile Food Unit at all times while in operation. In order to obtain 

said permit, operators shall submit copies of all required and current health 

department approvals for both commissary and each Mobile Food Unit and 

current City business license.  Applicant shall be responsible for having 

each unit inspected and approved by the City’s Fire Marshal prior to 

issuance of permit.   Temporary Permits may be issued upon issuance of a 

waiver from the City Manager pursuant to Section 4 of this Ordinance 

Number 2502-A. 

3. Location and/or operation of all Mobile Food Units shall be only in areas 

and/or districts zoned non-residential. 

4. Mobile Food Unit operators shall have approval of the property owner for 

each location at which the Mobile Food Unit operates.  This approval shall 

be in writing, signed by the property owner and must be made available for 

inspection upon request of any City Official at any time during the operation 

of the Mobile Food Unit. 

5. No Mobile Food Unit shall be allowed to operate in excess of eight (8) hours 

per day; operational meaning food sales (excluding food prep). 

6. No Mobile Food Unit shall be allowed to operate in excess of three (3) 

consecutive days in any one location.  During days of non-operation, the 

Mobile Food Unit and all associated vehicles and accessories including, but 



Ordinance Number 2502-A 
Page 3 

 

not limited to tables, chairs, picnic tables, benches, tents, popups, tarps, 

waste receptacles, etc., must be completely removed from the premises. 

7. Hours of operation for all Mobile Food Units shall be limited to 6:00 AM 

to 9:00 PM, local time. 

8. No Mobile Food Unit shall operate on more than two (2) individual sites 

within the City per day. 

9. No more than one (1) Mobile Food Unit shall operate on the same site per 

day unless specially approved festivals, celebrations, etc., and at the 

approval of the City Manager pursuant to Section 4 of this Ordinance 

Number 2502-A. 

10. Mobile Food Units shall not be located within two hundred (200) feet of the 

main entrance of the nearest restaurant during the restaurant’s posted hours 

of operation.   

11. Mobile Food Unit operators are responsible for the proper disposal of waste 

and trash associated with the operation.  Operators shall remove all waste 

and trash every 24 hours to maintain the health and safety of the public and 

to prevent any adverse odors.  City trash receptacles shall not be used for 

this purpose.   

12. All associated equipment, including trash receptacles, must be located 

within three (3) feet of the Mobile Food Unit. 

13. All Mobile Food Units shall be located a minimum of five (5) feet away 

from any fire hydrant, sidewalk, utility boxes, handicap ramps and/or 

building entrances.  

14. Mobile Food Units must be located off the public rights-of-way.  No fire 

lanes, vehicular access ways or pedestrian walkways may be obstructed or 

encroached upon by the Mobile Food Unit.  For the safety of customers, all 

picnic tables, benches, chairs provided by the Mobile Food Unit shall be 

located a safe distance from the public rights-of-way and vehicular traffic. 

15. No amplified microphones or bull horns, no flashing lights or any other 

distraction shall be permitted as a part of the Mobile Food Unit operation. 



Ordinance Number 2502-A 
Page 4 

16. Mobile Food Units shall not occupy parking spaces required to fulfill the

minimum requirements of a principal use, unless the hours of operation of

the principal use do not coincide with those of the Mobile Food Unit except

at the approval of the Zoning Official.

17. Signage is limited to signage located on Mobile Food Unit.  No portable

signage is allowed.

Section 3.  Penalties. 

 Any person violating any provision of this article may be issued a citation by the 

Vestavia Hills Police Department or at the request of the Finance Director or his 

designee be issued a summons and shall be required to appear in the Vestavia Hills 

Municipal Court.  Upon conviction, any person shall be subject to any fines and other 

applicable court costs which may be assessed by the Vestavia Hills Municipal Court. 

Section 4. Exceptions. 

  The City Manager shall, at his discretion, be authorized to issue an exemption to 

any Mobile Food Unit who is operating in an organized civic event, festival, 

celebration, non-profit event or any other event where it is deemed as being in the 

public’s interest in order to exempt the operator of the Mobile Food Unit from business 

license fees and permitting requirements; however, all operators are still responsible 

for the collection and remittance of sales taxes associated with the sale of said 

inventory, as well as inspection of food preparation facilities by the Fire Marshal. 

Section 5.  Severability. 

 If any part, section or subdivision of this resolution shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair 

the remainder of this resolution, which shall continue in full force and effect 

notwithstanding such holding. 

Section 6.  Effective Date: 

 This Ordinance Number 2502-A shall become effective immediately following 

adoption and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2502-A 
Page 5 

 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
       Ashley C. Curry  
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2502-A is a true and correct copy of 
such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 25th 
day of November, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and Vestavia 
Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2885 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2885 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of July, 2019, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3516 Squire Lane 
Brook and Celine Russell 

 
The part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, more 
particularly described as follows: Begin at the Southeast corner of said 1/4 
– 1/4 section and run thence Westwardly along the South line thereof for a 
distance of 413.25 feet to point of beginning of tract here described, from 
point of beginning thus obtained continue Westwardly along the South line 
of said l/4 – 1/4 section for a distance of 265.20 feet; thence turn an angle 
to the right if 88 degrees 05 ½ minutes and run Northwardly for a distance 
of 328.31 feet; thence turn 'an angle to the right of 91 degrees 46 minutes 
and run Eastwardly for a distance of 265.20 feet; thence turn an angle to the 
right of 88 degrees 14 minutes and run Southwardly for a distance of 328.97 
feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2885 
Page 2 

 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2885 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



Ordinance Number 2886 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2886 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

3516 Squire Lane 
Brook and Celine Russell, Owner(s) 

 
The part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, more 
particularly described as follows: Begin at the Southeast corner of said 1/4 
– 1/4 section and run thence Westwardly along the South line thereof for a 
distance of 413.25 feet to point of beginning of tract here described, from 
point of beginning thus obtained continue Westwardly along the South line 
of said l/4 – 1/4 section for a distance of 265.20 feet; thence turn an angle 
to the right if 88 degrees 05 ½ minutes and run Northwardly for a distance 
of 328.31 feet; thence turn 'an angle to the right of 91 degrees 46 minutes 
and run Eastwardly for a distance of 265.20 feet; thence turn an angle to the 
right of 88 degrees 14 minutes and run Southwardly for a distance of 328.97 
feet to the point of beginning. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2886 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2886 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Date:     OCTOBER 10, 2019 

• CASE:  P-1019-52

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3516 Squire Ln.

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Brook Russell

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of annexed property on 3516 Squire
Ln. from JC E-2 to VH R-21. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 2859 on
8/12/19.

• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with
low density residential but does not exist in the Comprehensive Plan.

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

MOTION  Ms. Cobb made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills 
R-1 for the property located At 3516 Squire Ln. Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Romeo – yes 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2886



Mr. Gilchrist – yes Mr. Sykes– yes 
Ms. Cobb – yes  Mr. Larson – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2886



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2886



Ordinance Number 2887 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2887 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 12th day of August, 2019, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

929 Mountain Branch Circle 
Lot 40, Mountain Branch Subdivision 

Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings LLC, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 

 

 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2887 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2887 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



Ordinance Number 2888 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2888 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

929 Mountain Branch Circle 
Lot 40, Mountain Branch Subdivision 

Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings, Owner(s) 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2888 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2888 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2888 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 10, 2019 
 

• CASE:  P-1019-50 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2  
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  929 Mountain Branch Cir. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings, LLC 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of annexed property on 929 Mountain 
Branch Cir. from JC R-1 to VH R-2. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 
2860 on 8/12/19.  

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 

the plan for low density residential.  
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC R-1 to Vestavia 
Hills R-2 for the property located At 929 Mountain Branch Cir. Second was by Ms. Cobb. 
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Romeo – yes     



 2 

Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sykes– yes    
Ms. Cobb – yes    Mr. Larson – yes    
Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2889 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2889 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 12th day of August, 2019, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2790 Acton Place 
Hugh Humphrey 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Commence at the SW corner of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, thence run S 90 degrees 00’00” E along 
the south line thereof for a distance of 481.18 feet; thence run N 30 degrees 
55’00” E for a distance of 81.93’; thence run N 79 degrees 25’00” E for a 
distance of 128.06’ to the point of beginning; thence run N 79 degrees 
25’00” E for a distance of 161.08’; thence run N 10 degrees 35’00” W for 
a distance of 86.00’; thence run N 71 degrees 30’45” W for a distance of 
150.14’ to a point on the southeasterly right-of-way of Acton Road.  Sid 
point being located on a curve to the right having a central angle of 05 
degrees 10’22” and a radius of 1216.77’ and a chord bearing of S 22 degrees 
34’03” W; thence run along the arc of said curve for a distance of 109.85’; 
thence run S 34 degrees 50’46” for a distance of 73.50’ to the point of 
beginning. 

 



Ordinance Number 2889 
Page 2 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2889 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



Ordinance Number 2890 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2890 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

2790 Acton Place 
Hugh Humphrey 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Commence at the SW corner of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, thence run S 90 degrees 00’00” E along 
the south line thereof for a distance of 481.18 feet; thence run N 30 degrees 
55’00” E for a distance of 81.93’; thence run N 79 degrees 25’00” E for a 
distance of 128.06’ to the point of beginning; thence run N 79 degrees 
25’00” E for a distance of 161.08’; thence run N 10 degrees 35’00” W for 
a distance of 86.00’; thence run N 71 degrees 30’45” W for a distance of 
150.14’ to a point on the southeasterly right-of-way of Acton Road.  Sid 
point being located on a curve to the right having a central angle of 05 
degrees 10’22” and a radius of 1216.77’ and a chord bearing of S 22 degrees 
34’03” W; thence run along the arc of said curve for a distance of 109.85’; 
thence run S 34 degrees 50’46” for a distance of 73.50’ to the point of 
beginning. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2890 
Page 2 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2890 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 
 





 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 10, 2019 
 

• CASE:  P-1019-47 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2  
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2790 Acton Pl. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Hugh R. Humphrey 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of annexed property on Acton Place 
from JC R-1 to VH R-2. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 2863 on 
8/12/19.  

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 

the plan for low density residential.  
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Ms. Cobb made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC R-1 to Vestavia Hills 
R-2 for the property located At 2790 Acton Pl. Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried 
on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Romeo – yes     
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sykes– yes    



 2 

Ms. Cobb – yes    Mr. Larson – yes    
Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 





Ordinance Number 2891 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2891 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 12th day of August, 2019, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2606 Acton Road 
Lot 5, Altadena Valley Country Club 
Mark and Jennifer Weldon, Owner(s) 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2891 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2891 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



2606 Acton Road



 

2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



Ordinance Number 2892 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2892 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY AGRI TO VESTAVIA HILLS A 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County Agri (agriculture 

district) to Vestavia Hills A (agriculture district):  

2606 Acton Road 
Lot 5, Altadena Valley Country Club 
Mark and Jennifer Weldon, Owners 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2892 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2892 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2892 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 10, 2019 
 

• CASE:  P-1019-49 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC A-1 to Vestavia Hills Agriculture 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2606 Acton Rd. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Jennifer S. Weldon 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of annexed property on Acton Rd. 
from JC A-1 to VH Agriculture. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 2862 
on 8/12/19.  

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 

the plan for low density residential.  
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
MOTION  Mr. Sykes made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC A-1 to Vestavia Hills 
Agriculture for the property located At 2606 Acton Rd. Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion 
was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Romeo – yes     



 2 

Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sykes– yes    
Ms. Cobb – yes    Mr. Larson – yes    
Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 







Ordinance Number 2893 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2893 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 12th day of August, 2019, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2429 Kenvil Circle 
Lot 36, Resurvey of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 and 48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 

William Ennis, Owner(s) 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 2893 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2893 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



Ordinance Number 2894 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2894 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2429 Kenvil Circle 
Lot 36, Resurvey of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 and 48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 

William Ennis, Owner 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2894 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2894 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2894 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 10, 2019 
 

• CASE:  P-1019-51 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2429 Kenvil Cir. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: William Ennis 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of annexed property on 2429 Kenvil 
Cir. from JC E-2 to VH R-21. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 2864 on 
8/12/19.  

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 

the plan for low density residential.  
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-2 to Vestavia 
Hills R-1  for the property located At 2429 Kenvil Cir. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Romeo – yes     
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sykes– yes    



 2 

Ms. Cobb – yes    Mr. Larson – yes    
Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 







Ordinance Number 2895 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2895 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 12th day of August, 2019, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2645 Alta Glen Drive 
Paul and Gloria Russell 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 33, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particular described as 
follows: 
 
From the NE corner of said SW ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of said Section 33, 
run in a Westerly direction along the North line of said 1/4-1/4 section for 
a distance of 351.77 feet, more or less, to a point on the SE right-of-way 
line of Alta Glen Drive; thence turn an angle to the left of 63 degrees 23 
minutes and run in a Southwesterly direction along the SE right-of-way line 
of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 75.0 feet to an existing iron pin; thence 
continue in a Southwesterly direction along the last mentioned course and 
along the SE right-of-way of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 215.5 feet to 
an existing iron pin; thence continue in a Southwesterly direction along the 
SE right-of-way line of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 217.15 feet to an 
existing #5 iron rebar being the point of beginning; thence continue in a 
Southwesterly direction along the SE right-of-way line of Alta Glen Drive 
for a distance of 445.51 feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence 



Ordinance Number 2895 
Page 2 

 

turn an angle to the left of 85 degrees 29 minutes 05 seconds and run 
Southeasterly direction for a distance of 350.00 feet to an existing iron rebar 
set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the left of 94 degrees 23 minutes 
01 seconds and run in an Northeasterly direction for a distance of 472.88 
feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the 
left of 90 degrees 06 minutes 11 seconds and run in a Northwesterly 
direction for a distance of 350.0 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2895 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2895 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



Ordinance Number 2896 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2896 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS E-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 (residential 

estate district) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (residential estate district):  

2645 Alta Glen Drive 
Paul and Gloria Russell 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 33, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particular described as 
follows: 
 
From the NE corner of said SW ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of said Section 33, 
run in a Westerly direction along the North line of said 1/4-1/4 section for 
a distance of 351.77 feet, more or less, to a point on the SE right-of-way 
line of Alta Glen Drive; thence turn an angle to the left of 63 degrees 23 
minutes and run in a Southwesterly direction along the SE right-of-way line 
of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 75.0 feet to an existing iron pin; thence 
continue in a Southwesterly direction along the last mentioned course and 
along the SE right-of-way of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 215.5 feet to 
an existing iron pin; thence continue in a Southwesterly direction along the 
SE right-of-way line of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 217.15 feet to an 
existing #5 iron rebar being the point of beginning; thence continue in a 
Southwesterly direction along the SE right-of-way line of Alta Glen Drive 
for a distance of 445.51 feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence 
turn an angle to the left of 85 degrees 29 minutes 05 seconds and run 
Southeasterly direction for a distance of 350.00 feet to an existing iron rebar 
set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the left of 94 degrees 23 minutes 
01 seconds and run in an Northeasterly direction for a distance of 472.88 
feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the 
left of 90 degrees 06 minutes 11 seconds and run in a Northwesterly 
direction for a distance of 350.0 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

 



Ordinance Number 2896 
Page 2 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2896 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2896 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 10, 2019 
 

• CASE:  P-1019-46 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2  
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2645 Alta Glen Dr. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Paul E. Russell 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of annexed property on Alta Glenn 
Drive from JC E-1 to VH-E-2. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 2861 
on 8/12/19. Applicant plans to subdivide parent parcel into three lots. All meet the 
minimum requirements of an E-2 zone. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 

the plan for low density residential.  
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
MOTION  Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-1 to Vestavia Hills 
E-2 for the property located At 2645 Alta Glen Dr. Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 



 2 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Romeo – yes     
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sykes– yes    
Ms. Cobb – yes    Mr. Larson – yes    
Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 









Ordinance Number 2897 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2897 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS B-
3 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-1.2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills B-3 (conditional 

business district) to Vestavia Hills B-1.2 (neighborhood mixed-use district):  

4222 Dolly Ridge Road 
Lot 8B, Resurvey of a Resurvey of Parts of Lots 7 & 8, New Merkle Heights 

Timothy Higgins, Owner 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2897 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2897 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of November, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2897 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     OCTOBER 10, 2019

CASE: P-1019-55

REQUESTED ACTION: Vestavia Hills B-3 to Vestavia Hills B-1.2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 4222 Dolly Ridge Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Timothy B. Higgins

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of a lot next to “In The Making”.
Applicants are requesting B-1.2 zoning for a retail shop on the first floor with a single 
residential unit above. The proposed setbacks are 53’ in the front. 10’ on the right, 11’ 
on the left and 136’ in the rear. Parking will be shared with the neighboring building. 
Covenants will be recorded limiting the building of one single dwelling unit that 
cannot be rented.

CAHABA HEIGHTS VILLAGE PLAN: The request is consistent with low density 
residential but does not exist in the Comprehensive Plan.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Vestavia Hills B-3 to 
Vestavia Hills B-1.2 with the condition that covenants attached be recorded before zoning is 



2

official for the property located At 4222 Dolly Ridge Rd. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Romeo – yes 
Mr. Gilchrist – yes Mr. Sykes– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.



























G
A

R
A

G
E

S
T

O
N

E
 F

IL
L

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

0
5

10
20

63
'-0

"

38'-0"







 



 









 









    






















































































































G
A

R
A

G
E

S
T

O
N

E
 F

IL
L

38'-0"

38'-0"

8'-8" 6'-4"

63
'-0

"

38'-0"







 



 









 









    














































































































LO
W

E
R

 L
E

V
E

L 
P

LA
N

0
2

4
8









R
E

T
A

IL
 S

E
LL

IN
G

 S
P

A
C

E
11

21
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T

38'-0"

37
'-6

"

29
'-6

"

O
W

N
E

R
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

63
'-0

"

38'-0"







 



 









 









    














































































































S
T

R
E

E
T

-R
E

T
A

IL
 L

E
V

E
L

0
2

4
8









M
A

S
T

E
R

 B
D

R
M

14
.0

 x
 1

7.
2

G
U

E
S

T
 B

D
R

M
.

11
.5

 X
 1

3.
4

M
A

IN
 L

IV
IN

G
19

.2
 X

 2
4.

2

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
P

O
R

C
H

9.
5 

X
 2

3.
0

W
A

LK
-I

N

63
'-0

"

38'-0"

P
IC

T
U

R
E

 G
A

LL
E

R
Y

P
A

N
T

R
Y







 



 









 









    














































































































S
E

C
O

N
D

 L
E

V
E

L-
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L 

M
A

IN

0
2

4
8









O
P

E
N

T
O

B
E

LO
W

23
94

 T
O

T
A

L
M

E
Z

Z
. 7

94
 T

O
T

A
L<

79
8 

A
LL

O
W

E
D

63
'-0

"

38'-0"







 



 









 









    














































































































M
E

Z
Z

A
N

IN
E

 L
E

V
E

L

0
2

4
8









F
IX

E
D

 S
T

O
R

E
F

R
O

N
T

 G
LA

Z
IN

G
.

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
G

R
A

D
E

 C
A

N
V

A
S

 A
W

N
IN

G

O
P

E
R

A
B

LE
 M

E
T

A
L 

C
LA

D
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

S

3
12

12
9

F
A

C
E

 B
R

IC
K

 @
 F

R
O

N
T

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N

32'-0" BUILDING HEIGHT

"L
IF

E
T

IM
E

" 
Q

U
A

LI
T

Y
 C

O
M

P
O

S
IT

IO
N

 S
H

IN
G

LE
S

S
H

E
D

 D
O

R
M

E
R

 B
E

Y
O

N
D

23'-0"

F
R

O
N

T
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

 A
LO

N
G

 D
O

LL
Y

 R
ID

G
E

0
2

4
8

M
E

T
A

L 
C

LA
D

 F
R

E
N

C
H

 D
O

O
R

S

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
G

R
A

D
E

 C
A

N
V

A
S

 A
W

N
IN

G

O
P

E
R

A
B

LE
 M

E
T

A
L 

C
LA

D
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

S

"L
IF

E
T

IM
E

" 
Q

U
A

LI
T

Y
 C

O
M

P
O

S
IT

IO
N

 S
H

IN
G

LE
S

O
P

E
R

A
B

LE
 M

E
T

A
L 

C
LA

D
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

S

F
A

C
E

 B
R

IC
K

R
O

U
N

D
 D

O
W

N
S

P
O

U
T

S

3'
-0

"

O
P

E
R

A
B

LE
 M

E
T

A
L 

C
LA

D
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

S

H
A

LF
-R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

N
T

IN
U

O
U

S
 G

U
T

T
E

R

C
O

N
T

IN
U

O
U

S
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

O
O

D
 F

R
IE

Z
E

 T
R

IM

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 L
A

P
 S

ID
IN

G
6"

 E
X

P
O

S
U

R
E

H
A

LF
 R

A
IL

IN
G

 @
 B

A
LC

O
N

Y

LO
W

 S
LO

P
E

 M
E

T
A

L 
R

O
O

F
U

N
D

E
R

 C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 B

A
LC

O
N

Y

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

D
 P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 P
A

S
S

A
G

E
B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
G

R
A

D
E

C
A

N
V

A
S

 A
W

N
IN

G

S
O

LI
D

 U
P

W
A

R
D

 A
C

T
IN

G
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
A

L 
D

O
O

R
S

S
H

E
D

 D
O

R
M

E
R

 B
E

Y
O

N
D

R
E

A
R

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N

0
2

4
8







 



 









 









    





















































































































O
P

E
R

A
B

LE
 (

E
G

R
E

S
S

) 
W

IN
D

O
W

S

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
G

R
A

D
E

 C
A

N
V

A
S

 A
W

N
IN

G

"L
IF

E
T

IM
E

" 
Q

U
A

LI
T

Y
 C

O
M

P
O

S
IT

IO
N

 S
H

IN
G

LE
S

F
A

C
E

 B
R

IC
K

R
O

U
N

D
 D

O
W

N
S

P
O

U
T

S

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 L
A

P
 S

ID
IN

G
6"

 E
X

P
O

S
U

R
E

R
E

T
A

IL
 E

X
IT

S
H

E
D

 D
O

R
M

E
R

 B
E

Y
O

N
D

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

LI
G

H
T

E
D

 P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 P

A
S

S
A

G
E

3
12

12
9

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
G

R
A

D
E

 C
A

N
V

A
S

 A
W

N
IN

G

F
A

C
E

 B
R

IC
K

32'-0" BUILDING HEIGHT

O
P

E
R

A
B

LE
 M

E
T

A
L 

C
LA

D
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

S

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
G

R
A

D
E

 C
A

N
V

A
S

 A
W

N
IN

G

"L
IF

E
T

IM
E

" 
Q

U
A

LI
T

Y
 C

O
M

P
O

S
IT

IO
N

 S
H

IN
G

LE
S

F
A

C
E

 B
R

IC
K

R
O

U
N

D
 D

O
W

N
S

P
O

U
T

S

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 L
A

P
 S

ID
IN

G
6"

 E
X

P
O

S
U

R
E

S
H

E
D

 D
O

R
M

E
R

 B
E

Y
O

N
D

S
ID

E
 (

W
A

LK
-W

A
Y

) 
E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

0
2

4
8

S
ID

E
 (

N
O

R
T

H
) 

E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N

0
2

4
8

E
LE

V
A

T
O

R
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N







 



 









 









    





















































































































11'-0"
2'-0"

2'-6"

R
E

T
A

IL

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
LI

V
IN

G
P

O
R

C
H

O
W

N
E

R
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

A
R

T
 G

A
LL

E
R

Y
- 

M
E

Z
Z

A
N

IN
E

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

0
2

4
8

O
W

N
E

R
 G

A
R

A
G

E

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

8'-0"

S
T

O
R

E
F

R
O

N
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
G

R
A

D
E

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

12
9

12
9







 



 









 









    

































































































































Ordinance Number 2899 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2899 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH JEFFERSON 
COUNTY COMMISSION TO JOIN A GIS CONSORTIUM TO CONTACT 
WITH G-SQUARED FOR PLANIMETRIC GIS DATA OVER THE NEXT 3 
YEARS 

 
 WHEREAS, Geographic Information Services (“GIS”) has become an integral part of the 

City’s information base for several departments including planning, zoning, engineering, VHPD, 

VHFD, Public Services, etc.; and 

 WHEREAS, Jefferson County began the Jefferson County Consortium (“the 

Consortium”) of several Jefferson County entities to cooperate together in order to contract with 

G-Squared, for delivery of planimetric data including, but not limited to buildings, pavement, 

paves and unpaved roads and other layers with an migration from 10 to 50 engineering grade scale; 

and 

 WHEREAS, this detailed information will provide accurate and high quality 

orthophotography and planimetric data annually for a period of three years, higher accuracy 

imagery, buildings, street data; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed and recommended participation in the 

Jefferson County GIS Consortium at the minimum participation graduated rates of:  $19,000 (year 

2020); $30,000 (year 2021) and $45,000 (year 2022); and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best public interest to consent to 

participation in the Consortium as described above. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

for participation in the Consortium at the graduated rates of $19,000 (year 2020); $30,000 

(year 2021) and $45,000 (year 2022); and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as Exhibit A, attached and incorporated into this 

Ordinance Number 2899 as if written fully therein; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2899 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval and posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 2899 
Page 2 

 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2899



Resolution Number 5206 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5206 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TRANSFER 
50% OF THE FY2019 GENERAL FUND SURPLUS TO THE CAPITAL 
PROJECTS FUND IN ANTICIPATION OF CERTAIN UPCOMING 
PROJECTS 

 
 WHEREAS, the unaudited FY2019 General Fund surplus for the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama; is estimated at $1.4 million; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has identified certain upcoming projects, including, but not 

limited to ALDOT projects which require a 20% local match; and 

 WHEREAS, the City’s Reserves Fund reflects a healthy balance which has progressively 

increased through the years; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager, in his analysis of all City funds, has recommended that 

fifty percent (50%) of the FY2019 General Fund surplus be transferred to the City’s Capital 

Projects Fund to assist with certain upcoming projects and project matches; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council agree it is in the best public interest to 

prepare in anticipation of upcoming projects and accept the City Manager’s recommendation to 

transfer fifty percent of the City’s FY2019 surplus to the Capital Projects Fund. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to direct the Finance Director to transfer fifty 

percent of the audited FY2019 General Fund surplus to the City’s Capital Projects Fund; 

and 

2. This Resolution Number 5206 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 5206 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2902 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH MADDOX 
ENTERPRISES, LP AND THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS REGARDING 
FORGIVENESS OF A PORTION OF A LIEN AGAINST PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1459 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY; DEVELOPMENT OF A 
PORTION OF THE PROPERTY AND PROHIBITING CERTAIN 
TEMPORARY USES ON THE REMAINING PORTION 

 
 WHEREAS, Maddox Enterprises, LP owns property situated at 1459 Montgomery 

Highway in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama which has recently been subdivided into two lots; 

and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to City Council actions in 2013, the City Council approved and 

adopted Resolution Number 4463 to assess a lien against the property located at 1459 Montgomery 

Highway in the amount of Seventy-five Thousand Dollars ($75,000); and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said lien was filed in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 

County, Alabama and recorded at BK: LR201315, Pg. 16803; and 

 WHEREAS, the owners are desirous to sell Lot 1 for development of a restaurant and 

retain ownership of Lot 2; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to stimulate 

development in the southern corridor of Montgomery Highway and therefore are willing to 

consider forgiveness of a portion of the lien conditioned upon the sale of Lot 1 and the execution 

of an agreement regarding the uses of Lot 2; and 

 WHEREAS, an agreement was drafted which allows forgiveness of fifty percent of the 

recorded lien upon certain conditions and the uses of Lot 2, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit 

A, attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2902 as if written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

authorize the execution and delivery of the agreement marked as Exhibit A regarding the 

development of property located at 1459 Montgomery Highway. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the agreement 

detailed in Exhibit A with Maddox Enterprises, LP and take all actions necessary to 

complete all provisions of said agreement; and 

2. A copy of the executed agreement shall be retained in the Office of the City Clerk; and 

3. This Ordinance Number shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

posting/publication pursuant to Alabama law. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT ("the Agreement"), is hereby made and entered on this the ___ _ 
day of September, 2019 by and between Maddox Enterprises, LP (hereinafter referred to as 
"Maddox") and the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to 
as "City"). 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Maddox owns the real estate situated at 1459 Montgomery Highway in the City 
of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama having Parcel ID number 39-01-1-001-002.000-RR-2, 
hereinafter referred to as "Parcel I" more particularly described in Exhibit 1, which is attached hereto 
and incorporated into this Agreement by reference as though set out fully herein); and 

WHEREAS, Maddox also owns the real estate situated at 1459 Montgomery Highway in the 
City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama having Parcel ID number 29-36-4-007-005.000-
RR6, hereinafter referred to as "Parcel II" more particularly described in Exhibit 2, which is attached 
hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by reference as though set out fully herein); and 

WHEREAS, Parcel I and Parcel II are zoned B-3 Conditional Business District pursuant to 
City Zoning Code Ordinance Number 2331, which permits said parcels to be used for those purposes 
set forth in Table 6 of said Zoning Code, a copy of which is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 3 and 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference as though set out fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, Maddox utilized Parcel I and Parcel II for the operation of a hotel and 
restaurant for many years; and 

WHEREAS, on July 23, 2012 the City Council approved and adopted Resolution Number 
4322 declaring the building on Parcel I and Parcel II to be unsafe to the extent that it was a public 
nuisance and subject to demolition; and 

WHEREAS, Maddox disagreed with the decision of the City Council and filed a Notice of 
Appeal in the Civil Division of the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, Alabama in case number CV-
2012-01905 styled City of Vestavia Hills v. Maddox Enterprises, LP, et al (the "lawsuit"); and 

WHEREAS, the lawsuit was settled by mediation on May 22, 2013, which Settlement 
Agreement provided that Maddox would demolish the building within a seven-month period at its 
sole expense; and 

WHEREAS, on May 29, 2013, the City Council approved and adopted Resolution Number 
4455 approving the settlement; and 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Agreement 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, Maddox failed and refused to demolish the building as agreed upon in the 
lawsuit; and 

WHEREAS, the City hired Tomlin Excavating and Demolition to demolish the building; and 

WHEREAS, Tomlin Excavating and Demolition demolished the building; and 

WHEREAS, on June 24, 2013, the City Council approved and adopted Resolution Number 
4463 and assessed the sum of Seventy-five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) to be the cost reasonably 
incurred by the City through May 22, 2013 in connection with the prosecution of the demolition 
action of the building and established a lien ("lien") against Parcel I and Parcel II for that amount; 

and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the lien was filed in the office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 
County, Alabama on June 28, 2013 and recorded at BK: LR201315, Pg. 16803, a copy of which is 
attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 4 and incorporated into this Agreement by reference as though set 
out fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, to date Maddox has paid none of the indebtedness secured by the lien; and 

WHEREAS, Maddox has requested the City to forgive the indebtedness of the lien and to 
release Parcel I and Parcel II for the encumbrance of said lien; and 

WHEREAS, Section 94 of the Constitution of Alabama, as amended by Amendments 112 
and 558, prohibits a city from lending its credit or to grant public money or thing of value in aide of 

or to any individual, association or corporation whatsoever; and 

WHEREAS, the Supreme Court of Alabama has interpreted the language of Section 94 of 
the Constitution of Alabama, and held that governmental bodies such as a city may spend municipal 

funds only for public purposes (Slawson v. Alabama Forestry Commission, 631 So.2d 953 (1994)); 
and 

WHEREAS, on April 6, 2004, the Legislature of the State of Alabama enacted Act 2004-094 
to propose an amendment to the Constitution of Alabama of 1901. The proposed constitutional 
amendment appeared as Amendment Number 3 on the ballot for the statewide referendum conducted 
during the National Election on November 11, 2004. Voters in Alabama approved the constitutional 
amendment by a vote of 727,630 in favor and 584,014 against. The constitutional amendment 
known as "Amendment 772" was, therefore, ratified and brought forward as Article IV, §94.01, 

which reads in pertinent part as follows: 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Agreement 
Page 5 

III. APPLICATION FOR SATISFACTION AND RELEASE OF LIEN

If Maddox, at any time following the approval of the subdivision plat by the Vestavia Hills
Planning and Zoning Commission as described in section II above, receives a written offer from a 
proposed purchaser to buy Lot 1, in the form of a contract or agreement for the sale and purchase of 
real estate ("contract"), then in such event Maddox shall: 

A. Present a copy of the contract, together with a written request for the City to:

1. Conduct a public hearing at a regularly scheduled or special meeting of the
City Council meeting ("hearing" pursuant to the process and for the purpose described in Article IV 
Section 94.01 of the Alabama Constitution.

2. Release Lot 1 from the encumbrance of the lien.

3. Apply a credit of Thirty-seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($37,500.00)
as partial payment of the indebtedness secured by the lien. 

4. A written acknowledgment and agreement that should the request be
approved, then in such event the lien shall remain an encumbrance against Lot 2 in the amount of 
Thirty-seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($37,500.00). 

B. The purchaser named in the contract shall be present in person at the public hearing
for the purpose of informing the City and members of the public about the type and kind of business 
proposed to be operated on Lot 1 and to answer any questions asked by members of the City Council. 

IV. PUBLIC HEARING

A. PREREQUISITES: The City will schedule the public hearing; provided, however,
Maddox shall have first completed the replatting as required by Section II and submitted the written 
request as required by Section ill. The City will not schedule the public hearing until after Maddox 
has complied with the requirements of Sections II and ill of this Agreement. 

V. ISSUE

The issue for the City Council to decide at the public hearing is whether or not approving the
request will promote economic development and serve a valid and sufficient public purpose, 
notwithstanding any incidental benefit accruing to any private entity or entities. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCEL I 

Lot 1, according to the Survey of Motel 
Investors Addition to Vestavia Hills, as 
recorded in Map Book 86, Page 14, in the 
Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 
County, Alabama. 

Less and except that part conveyed to Koger 
Properties, Inc. by deed recorded in Real 
Volume 2138, page 797 and that part conveyed 
to SouthPark, Ltd. by deed recorded in Real 
Volume 2138, page 802. 

EXHIBIT I 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2902



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5207 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING WATER DAMAGE AT THE CAHABA 
HEIGHTS POLICE SUBSTATION AS AN EMERGENCY AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO REPAIR SAID DAMAGES 

WHEREAS, the Cahaba Heights Police Substation recently experienced a plumbing 

issues that caused extensive damage to the building; and 

WHEREAS, the cost to repair said damage is estimated at approximately $8,251.25 as 

detailed in m an estimated marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 5207 as though written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Police Chief, in an email to the City Manager dated November 20, 2019 

has indicated that repairs are needed immediately in order to keep the facility functioning; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel it is in the best public interest to declare 

said repairs as an emergency and authorize the City Manager to repair said damage. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The repairs needed at the Cahaba Heights Police Substation are deemed essential and are

deemed an emergency situation; and

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to take all actions necessary to repair said damage

at an expense not to exceed $9,000 pursuant to the estimate detailed in the attached Exhibit

A; and

3. This Resolution Number 5207 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

Ashley C. 
Curry Mayor ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of November, 2019.



Estimate
Date

11/19/2019

Estimate No

6236

Name / Address

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
ATTN:  KEITH BLANTON
1032 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY
VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35216-1807

AGL, Inc.

3118 Bellwood Drive
Suite 114

REP

SPL

JOB NAME

Vestavia Police

TotalAGL is not responsible for errors or omissions in drawings or changes without confirmed
notification.

ITEM DESCRIPTION COST Total

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS - CAHABA HEIGHTS POLICE
DEPARTMENT

150 DEMOLITION 250.00 250.00
320 WALLS & PATCH - Prep walls 1,450.00 1,450.00
130 CEILINGS 475.00 475.00
270 PLUMBING 350.00 350.00
250 PAINT 2,500.00 2,500.00
180 FLOOR COVERINGS/COVE BASE 1,450.00 1,450.00
140 CLEAN UP 350.00 350.00
300 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 350.00 350.00
240 OVERHEAD AND PROFIT 1,076.25 1,076.25

$8,251.25

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5207



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Danny Rary
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2019 10:38 AM
To: Jeff Downes
Cc: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: Council agenda request
Attachments: Quote from AGL to Repair Plumbing Leak at CH Sub dated 11-19-2019.pdf

Mr. Downes, 

On 28 Oct 2019  the  Cahaba Heights Police sub‐station experienced a plumbing issue causing extensive damage.  I am 
requesting council action to appropriate the money to fix this damage.  We do not have allocated funds for this type of 
unusual repair in the budget for Fiscal  
Year 2020.   

FY 2020 Budget Account 51‐5390‐000‐200      Maintenance/Repair Electric & Plumbing Cahaba 
Heights                 3,500.00 

While the above amount is the average regular amount spent annually for repairs, this major damage far exceeds 
allocated funds. 

Estimate to repair damage to Cahaba Heights substation is $8,251.25.  

I am requesting that this request for funding be placed on the agenda for the City Council regular scheduled meeting 
Monday 25 November 2019.   

Attached is the estimate. 

Danny P. Rary 
Chief of Police 
Vestavia Hills Police Department 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 
205‐978‐0109 
drary@vhal.org 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5207



Ordinance Number 2900 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2900 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-5 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-4 (multi-

family residential) to Vestavia Hills R-5 (multi-family residential):  

2926 Columbiana Road (2927 Columbiana Court) 
Elevation Apartments (formerly Windcliff Apartments) 

ECG Vestavia, LLC; Summit Vestavia I, LLC; Summit Vestavia II, LLC as tenants in 
common, Owners 

Real property in the City of Vestavia Hills, County of Jefferson, State of 
Alabama, described as follows:  

A part of the Northeast quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section I, 
Township 19 South, Range 3 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, 
lying North of the property conveyed to Wessel B. and Frances L. Fleming 
by deed recorded in Volume 4659, Page 46 6 and lying West and Northwest 
of Oxmoor Camp Branch Road, (also known as Old Columbiana Road), 
said property also lying West of the property conveyed to Jonas Schwab 
and wife, to W. F. and Mary Ethel Pilcher by deed recorded in Volume 
1421, Page 530 and West of the property conveyed by J.M. Oglesby and 
wife, to W.W.M. and Lillian F. Riddle by deed recorded in Volume 3727, 
Page 218 , LESS AND EXCEPT that part conveyed to Jefferson County, 
Alabama as recorded in Volume 6605 , Page 287, the above described 
parcel of land being more particularly described as follows: Begin at the 
Northwest comer of the Northeast quarter of the Northwest quarter of 
Section 1, Township 19 South, Range 3 West; thence in an Easterly 
direction along the North line of said quarter-quarter section a distance of 
584 .02 feet to a point on the Westerly right of way line of the Green Springs 
Highway; thence 77° 21' right in a Southeasterly direction along said right 
of way line a distance of 648 .81 feet; thence 48 ° 25' right in a 
Southwesterly direction a distance of28 .29 feet; thence 54 ° 06' right in a 
Westerly direction a distance of 695.2 2 feet to a point in the Westerly line 
of said quarter-quarter section; thence 88 ° 53' right in a Northerly direction 



Ordinance Number 2900 
Page 2 

along the Westerly line of said quarter-quarter section a distance of 657 .80 
feet to the point of beginning. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 16th day of December, 2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2900 is a true and correct 
copy of such 16th day of December, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2900 
Page 3 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     NOVEMBER 14, 2019

CASE: P-1119-60

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC R-4 to Vestavia Hills R-5

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2926 Columbiana Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: ECG Vestavia, LLC; Et Al.

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of a property on Columbiana Rd.
Property was annexed into the City on 8/8/84 but never compatibly rezoned, as is not 
customary. This request will compatibly rezone the property in accordance with 
zoning code. 

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for Village Center.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC R-4 to Vestavia 
Hills R-5 for the property located At 2926 Columbiana Rd.. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion 
was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



2

Mr. Farrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2900



Ordinance Number 2901 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2901 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS B-
1.2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-1.2 WITH A REVISED SITE PLAN 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills B-1.2 to Vestavia 

Hills B-1.2 with a revised site plan:  

3127 Blue Lake Drive 
Lot 10-A, Resurvey Lots 8, 9 &10 Topfield and Lot 11 Topfield Subdivision 

SWBP Investments LLC, Owners 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said development is permitted as a 

conditional use, an additional 2,500 square feet for a 12,500 square foot building pursuant 

to the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 16th day of December, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2901 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2901 is a true and correct 
copy of such 16th day of December, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2901 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     FEBRUARY 14, 2019

CASE: P-1119-61

REQUESTED ACTION: Site Plan Amendment And Conditional Use Approval 
2,500 Square Feet Of Gross Floor Area

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3127 Blue Lake Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: SWBP Investments, LLC

REPRESENTING AGENT: Shannon Waltchack

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking a site plan amendment for a 
medical office for the property at 3127 Blue Lake Dr. This property and the adjoining 
property were originally rezoned from R-1 to B-1.2 in October 2015 (Ordinance 
Number 2605) and conditioned on the site plan as presented at that time. The property 
is currently in purchase/sale, requiring a site plan change. This revised site plan will 
include one proposed building with the required parking and landscaping. The 
proposed building would be 12,500 square feet. Section 6.3.1.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance states that any building over 10,000 square feet requires Conditional Use 
approval (see attached).

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Building to be designed in a residential 
style and compatible with other new construction in the Blue Lake area

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



2

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend the Site Plan Amendment and 
Conditional Use for an Additional 2,500 square feet for the property located At 3127 Blue Lake 
Dr. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes 
Mr. Farrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901





Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



D
E

M
O

LI
T

IO
N

 N
O

T
E

S
D

E
M

O
LI

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



S
IT

E
 D

A
T

A
 T

A
B

LE










































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1





















































S
IT

E
 L

A
Y

O
U

T
 N

O
T

E
S



















Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



BA C D

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



E G H IF J K L M N O P Q R S T U

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901














































T
O

 B
E

 D
E

T
E

R
M

IN
E

D





















































































































































K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l  b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



PA
R

T 
I  

C
ov

er
ag

e 
U

nd
er

 T
hi

s G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it

A
.

Pe
rm

it 
C

ov
er

ag
e

Th
is

 p
er

m
it 

au
th

or
iz

es
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it,
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 th
at

 w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 la
nd

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 e
qu

al
 to

 o
r g

re
at

er
 th

an
 o

ne
 (1

)
ac

re
 o

r f
ro

m
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
le

ss
 th

an
 o

ne
 (1

) a
cr

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 p
ar

t o
f a

 c
om

m
on

 p
la

n 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r s

al
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

or
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 o

ne
 (1

) a
cr

e 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

on
 o

r
be

fo
re

, a
nd

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 a

fte
r t

he
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

da
te

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it,
 e

xc
ep

t f
or

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 u
nd

er
 P

ar
t I

.C
. o

f t
he

 p
er

m
it.

 C
ov

er
ag

e 
un

de
r t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
is

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r d

is
ch

ar
ge

s
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 m
in

or
 la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 (s

uc
h 

as
 h

om
e 

ga
rd

en
s o

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
l h

om
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g,

 re
pa

irs
, m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 w

or
k,

 fe
nc

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 re
la

te
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
hi

ch
 re

su
lt 

in
m

in
or

 so
il 

er
os

io
n)

, a
ni

m
al

 fe
ed

in
g 

op
er

at
io

n 
(A

FO
) o

r c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
an

im
al

 fe
ed

in
g 

op
er

at
io

n 
(C

A
FO

) c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
gr

an
te

d 
N

PD
ES

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

co
ve

ra
ge

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 C

ha
pt

er
 3

35
-6

-7
, n

or
m

al
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
nd

 si
lv

ic
ul

tu
ra

l o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

s d
ef

in
ed

 in
 P

ar
t V

.

B
.

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
1.

A
llo

w
ab

le
 S

to
rm

w
at

er
 D

is
ch

ar
ge

s
Th

is
 p

er
m

it 
au

th
or

iz
es

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s:
(a

)
St

or
m

w
at

er
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 P

ar
t I

.A
. o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it;

(b
)

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s h
av

e 
be

en
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 to

 re
qu

ire
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

un
de

r t
hi

s p
er

m
it:

(i)
Si

te
s, 

irr
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
 si

ze
, w

ho
se

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s h

av
e 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

be
 a

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

on
tri

bu
to

r o
f p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s t
o 

a 
w

at
er

 o
f t

he
 st

at
e,

 a
s d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t;
(ii

)
Si

te
s, 

irr
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
 si

ze
, w

ho
se

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s h

av
e 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

ca
us

e 
or

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 a
 v

io
la

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 A
la

ba
m

a 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

 a
s

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.
(c

)
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s f
ro

m
 su

pp
or

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 (e

.g
., 

eq
ui

pm
en

t s
ta

gi
ng

 y
ar

ds
, m

at
er

ia
l s

to
ra

ge
 a

re
as

, e
xc

av
at

ed
 m

at
er

ia
l d

is
po

sa
l a

re
as

, b
or

ro
w

 a
re

as
) p

ro
vi

de
d:

(i)
Th

e 
su

pp
or

t a
ct

iv
ity

 is
 so

le
ly

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 c

ov
er

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 p
er

m
it;

(ii
)

Th
e 

su
pp

or
t a

ct
iv

ity
 is

 n
ot

 a
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

se
rv

in
g 

m
ul

tip
le

 u
nr

el
at

ed
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 b
y 

di
ff

er
en

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
, a

nd
 d

oe
s n

ot
 o

pe
ra

te
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

t t
he

 la
st

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t i
t s

up
po

rts
; a

nd
(ii

i)
Po

llu
ta

nt
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s f
ro

m
 su

pp
or

t a
ct

iv
ity

 a
re

as
 a

re
 m

in
im

iz
ed

 to
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 d
o 

no
t p

os
e 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

ex
ce

ed
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y
st

an
da

rd
s.

2.
A

llo
w

ab
le

 N
on

-S
to

rm
w

at
er

 D
is

ch
ar

ge
s

Th
is

 p
er

m
it 

au
th

or
iz

es
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

no
n-

st
or

m
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

no
n-

st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 is

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

II
.D

.
(a

)
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s f
ro

m
 fi

re
-f

ig
ht

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

;
(b

)
Fi

re
 h

yd
ra

nt
 fl

us
hi

ng
s;

(c
)

W
at

er
s u

se
d 

to
 w

as
h 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
he

re
 d

et
er

ge
nt

s a
re

 n
ot

 u
se

d;
(d

)
W

at
er

 u
se

d 
to

 c
on

tro
l d

us
t;

(e
)

Po
ta

bl
e 

w
at

er
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
co

nt
am

in
at

ed
 w

at
er

 li
ne

 fl
us

hi
ng

s n
ot

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 h
yd

ro
st

at
ic

 te
st

in
g;

(f
)

R
ou

tin
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
w

as
h 

do
w

n 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
th

at
 d

oe
s n

ot
 u

se
 d

et
er

ge
nt

s;
(g

)
Pa

ve
m

en
t w

as
h 

w
at

er
s w

he
re

 sp
ill

s o
r l

ea
ks

 o
f t

ox
ic

 o
r h

az
ar

do
us

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 h

av
e 

no
t o

cc
ur

re
d 

(u
nl

es
s a

ll 
sp

ill
ed

 m
at

er
ia

l h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

m
ov

ed
) a

nd
 w

he
re

 d
et

er
ge

nt
s a

re
 n

ot
us

ed
. T

he
 o

pe
ra

to
r i

s p
ro

hi
bi

te
d 

fr
om

 d
ire

ct
in

g 
pa

ve
m

en
t w

as
h 

w
at

er
s d

ire
ct

ly
 in

to
 a

ny
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

, s
to

rm
 d

ra
in

 in
le

t, 
or

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
on

ve
ya

nc
e,

 u
nl

es
s t

he
 c

on
ve

ya
nc

e 
is

co
nn

ec
te

d 
to

 a
 se

di
m

en
t b

as
in

, s
ed

im
en

t t
ra

p,
 o

r s
im

ila
rly

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
co

nt
ro

l;
(h

)
U

nc
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 a

ir 
co

nd
iti

on
in

g 
or

 c
om

pr
es

so
r c

on
de

ns
at

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 o

ff
ic

e 
tra

ile
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 si

m
ila

r b
ui

ld
in

gs
;

(i)
U

nc
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 g

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 o
r s

pr
in

g 
w

at
er

;
(j)

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
or

 fo
ot

in
g 

dr
ai

ns
 w

he
re

 fl
ow

s a
re

 n
ot

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 w

ith
 p

ro
ce

ss
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 su
ch

 a
s s

ol
ve

nt
s;

(k
)

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
irr

ig
at

io
n;

(l)
D

is
ch

ar
ge

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
an

d 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
 se

pa
ra

te
 N

PD
ES

 p
er

m
it.

C
.

Pr
oh

ib
ite

d 
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s
 T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

di
sc

ha
rg

es
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ar
e 

no
t a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 p
er

m
it:

1.
St

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s t
ha

t a
re

 m
ix

ed
 w

ith
 so

ur
ce

s o
f n

on
-s

to
rm

w
at

er
 u

nl
es

s s
uc

h 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s a
re

:
(a

)
In

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
 se

pa
ra

te
 N

PD
ES

 p
er

m
it,

 o
r

(b
)

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t n

ot
 to

 b
e 

a 
co

nt
rib

ut
or

 o
f p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s t
o 

w
at

er
s o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
.

2.
St

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s c
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

ov
er

ed
 u

nd
er

 a
no

th
er

 N
PD

ES
 p

er
m

it;
3.

W
as

te
w

at
er

 fr
om

 w
as

ho
ut

 o
f c

on
cr

et
e,

 u
nl

es
s m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
on

tro
l. 

(W
as

te
w

at
er

 fr
om

 C
on

cr
et

e 
B

at
ch

 P
la

nt
s a

re
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d 
un

le
ss

 su
ch

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s a

re
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

an
d 

in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

 se
pa

ra
te

 N
PD

ES
 p

er
m

it)
;

4.
W

as
te

w
at

er
 fr

om
 w

as
ho

ut
 a

nd
 c

le
an

ou
t o

f s
tu

cc
o,

 p
ai

nt
, f

or
m

 re
le

as
e 

oi
ls

, c
ur

in
g 

co
m

po
un

ds
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, u
nl

es
s m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
on

tro
ls

 a
s

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t;
5.

Fu
el

s, 
oi

ls
, o

r o
th

er
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s u
se

d 
in

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t o

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

;
6.

So
ap

s o
r s

ol
ve

nt
s u

se
d 

in
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t w
as

hi
ng

;
7.

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s f

ro
m

 d
ew

at
er

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s o
f g

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 o
r a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 st

or
m

w
at

er
 fr

om
 d

ew
at

er
in

g 
of

 tr
en

ch
es

, e
xc

av
at

io
ns

, f
ou

nd
at

io
ns

, v
au

lts
, o

r
ot

he
r s

im
ila

r p
oi

nt
s o

f a
cc

um
ul

at
io

n,
 u

nl
es

s m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tro

ls
, a

s d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t;

8.
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s t
o 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
s f

ro
m

 se
di

m
en

t b
as

in
s o

r i
m

po
un

dm
en

ts
, u

nl
es

s a
n 

ou
tle

t s
tru

ct
ur

e 
th

at
 w

ith
dr

aw
s w

at
er

 fr
om

 th
e 

su
rf

ac
e,

 u
nl

es
s i

nf
ea

si
bl

e,
 is

 u
til

iz
ed

;
9.

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s w

he
re

 th
e 

tu
rb

id
ity

 o
f s

uc
h 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
w

ill
 c

au
se

 o
r c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l v

is
ib

le
 c

on
tra

st
 w

ith
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

w
at

er
;

10
.

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s w

he
re

 th
e 

tu
rb

id
ity

 o
f s

uc
h 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
w

ill
 c

au
se

 o
r c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

tu
rb

id
ity

 o
f t

he
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

w
at

er
 b

y 
m

or
e 

th
an

 5
0 

N
TU

s a
bo

ve
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

d.
 F

or
th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 li

m
ita

tio
n,

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
te

rp
re

te
d 

as
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
w

at
er

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 in

flu
en

ce
 o

f m
an

-m
ad

e 
or

m
an

-in
du

ce
d 

ca
us

es
. T

ur
bi

di
ty

 le
ve

ls
 c

au
se

d 
by

 n
at

ur
al

 ru
no

ff
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

le
ve

ls
;

11
.

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s o

f a
ny

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
 in

to
 a

ny
 w

at
er

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 a
 to

ta
l m

ax
im

um
 d

ai
ly

 lo
ad

 (T
M

D
L)

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fin

al
iz

ed
 o

r a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 E
PA

 u
nl

es
s t

he
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e

TM
D

L;
 a

nd
12

.
D

is
ch

ar
ge

s t
o 

w
at

er
s l

is
te

d 
on

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
tly

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
30

3(
d)

 li
st

 o
f i

m
pa

ire
d 

st
re

am
s u

nl
es

s t
he

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 w

ill
 n

ot
 c

au
se

 o
r c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
lis

te
d 

im
pa

irm
en

t.

PA
R

T
 II

 N
ot

ic
e 

of
 In

te
nt

 (N
O

I)
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 (P
A

R
T

)
D

.
Su

bm
itt

al
 o

f D
oc

um
en

ts
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 m

us
t c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

su
bm

it 
th

e 
N

O
I e

le
ct

ro
ni

ca
lly

, u
si

ng
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t’s
 e

N
O

I s
ys

te
m

, u
nl

es
s t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 su
bm

its
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

va
lid

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

as
 to

 w
hy

 th
e

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
su

bm
itt

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
 c

an
no

t b
e 

ut
ili

ze
d 

an
d

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

pp
ro

ve
s i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
th

e 
ut

ili
za

tio
n 

of
 h

ar
d 

co
py

 su
bm

itt
al

s. 
Th

e 
eN

O
I s

ys
te

m
 c

an
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 a

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
lin

k
ht

tp
s:

//a
pp

.a
de

m
.a

la
ba

m
a.

go
v/

eN
O

I/D
ef

au
lt.

as
px

. P
er

m
it 

re
qu

es
ts

 fo
r i

ni
tia

l i
ss

ua
nc

e 
an

d 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pe

rm
it 

sh
ou

ld
 a

ll 
be

 su
bm

itt
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

eN
O

I s
ys

te
m

. A
ll

ot
he

r d
oc

um
en

ts
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t b
y 

th
is

 g
en

er
al

 p
er

m
it 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ad
dr

es
s:

A
la

ba
m

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l M

an
ag

em
en

t
W

at
er

 D
iv

is
io

n
St

or
m

w
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t B
ra

nc
h

Po
st

 O
ff

ic
e 

B
ox

 3
01

46
3 

(Z
ip

 C
od

e:
 3

61
30

-1
46

3)
14

00
 C

ol
is

eu
m

 B
ou

le
va

rd
 (Z

ip
 C

od
e:

 3
61

10
-2

05
9)

M
on

tg
om

er
y,

 A
la

ba
m

a

PA
R

T
 II

I S
to

rm
w

at
er

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 (P

A
R

T
)

B
.

Pr
ov

id
e 

N
at

ur
al

 B
uf

fe
rs

 o
r 

E
qu

iv
al

en
t S

ed
im

en
t C

on
tr

ol
s

B
uf

fe
r z

on
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
ll 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
s a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
si

te
s o

r c
on

ta
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
ei

r o
ve

ra
ll 

pr
oj

ec
t b

ou
nd

ar
y.

 A
 2

5-
fo

ot
 n

at
ur

al
 ri

pa
ria

n 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
to

 a
ll 

st
re

am
s a

t t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 sh

al
l b

e 
pr

es
er

ve
d,

 to
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

, d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
t t

he
 si

te
. T

he
 ri

pa
ria

n 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
es

er
ve

d
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
to

p 
of

 st
re

am
 b

an
k 

an
d 

th
e 

di
st

ur
be

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ar

ea
. T

he
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

bu
ff

er
 z

on
e 

ai
ds

 in
 th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

s o
f t

he
 st

at
e 

(e
.g

., 
pe

re
nn

ia
l a

nd
 in

te
rm

itt
en

t s
tre

am
s,

riv
er

s, 
la

ke
s, 

w
et

la
nd

s)
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 o
r i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

bo
un

da
rie

s o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
. N

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r z
on

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 p

rim
ar

y 
se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

l m
ea

su
re

s a
nd

 sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e
re

lie
d 

on
 a

s s
uc

h.
 T

he
 n

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r z
on

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
nl

y 
ap

pl
ie

s t
o 

ne
w

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
s.

1.
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
(a

)
Pr

ov
id

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
25

-f
oo

t u
nd

is
tu

rb
ed

 n
at

ur
al

 b
uf

fe
r; 

or
(i)

If
 la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
s a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
25

 fe
et

 o
r f

ur
th

er
 fr

om
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

, t
he

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
.

(ii
)

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f a

 n
at

ur
al

 b
uf

fe
r z

on
e 

is
 a

llo
w

ed
, i

f n
ec

es
sa

ry
, f

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f i

ts
 e

ff
ec

tiv
en

es
s o

f p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
w

at
er

s o
f t

he
 st

at
e.

(ii
i)

A
ny

 p
re

ex
is

tin
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 (e

.g
., 

bu
ild

in
gs

, p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
ts

, r
oa

dw
ay

s, 
ut

ili
ty

 li
ne

s, 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, i
m

pe
rv

io
us

 su
rf

ac
es

) a
re

 a
llo

w
ed

 in
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l b
uf

fe
r; 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

re
ta

in
s a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
s f

ro
m

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 n

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r a
re

a 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e 
bu

t o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

pr
ee

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 fo

ot
pr

in
t.

(b
)

Pr
ov

id
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 u
nd

is
tu

rb
ed

 n
at

ur
al

 b
uf

fe
r t

ha
t i

s l
es

s t
ha

n 
25

 fe
et

 a
nd

 is
 su

pp
le

m
en

te
d 

by
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
ro

si
on

 a
nd

 se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls

, w
hi

ch
 in

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

ac
hi

ev
es

th
e 

se
di

m
en

t l
oa

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 to

 a
 2

5-
fo

ot
 u

nd
is

tu
rb

ed
 n

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r; 
or

(c
)

If
 it

 is
 in

fe
as

ib
le

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
 u

nd
is

tu
rb

ed
 n

at
ur

al
 b

uf
fe

r o
f a

ny
 si

ze
, t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 m
us

t i
m

pl
em

en
t e

ro
si

on
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 th

at
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
se

di
m

en
t l

oa
d

re
du

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 to
 a

 2
5-

fo
ot

 u
nd

is
tu

rb
ed

 n
at

ur
al

 b
uf

fe
r.

(d
)

A
ll 

di
sc

ha
rg

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f e
ar

th
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

na
tu

ra
l b

uf
fe

r m
us

t f
irs

t b
e 

tre
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
si

te
’s

 e
ro

si
on

 a
nd

 se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls

, a
nd

 u
se

 v
el

oc
ity

 d
is

si
pa

tio
n 

de
vi

ce
s i

f
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 e

ro
si

on
 c

au
se

d 
by

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
bu

ff
er

.
(e

)
A

ll 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 m

us
t b

e 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. T
he

 b
uf

fe
r b

ou
nd

ar
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 th

e 
si

te
 p

la
n.

(f
)

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 m
us

t b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 p
er

m
it 

co
ve

ra
ge

.
(g

)
A

ll 
na

tu
ra

l b
uf

fe
r a

re
as

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

lin
ea

te
d,

 a
nd

 c
le

ar
ly

 m
ar

ke
d 

of
f w

ith
 fl

ag
s, 

ta
pe

, o
r s

im
ila

r m
ar

ki
ng

de
vi

ce
.

2.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
t s

ite
s t

ha
t h

av
e 

be
en

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 p

rio
r t

o 
A

pr
il 

1,
 2

01
6,

 a
re

 e
xe

m
pt

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s P

ar
t I

II
.B

. C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 p
er

m
it 

co
ve

ra
ge

 p
rio

r t
o

A
pr

il 
1,

 2
01

6,
 m

us
t b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

O
I.

3.
If

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 to
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

s t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

ar
ea

s b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 a

nd
 a

ny
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

s l
oc

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f y
ou

r s
ite

, c
om

pl
ia

nc
e

w
ith

 th
is

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t i

s a
ch

ie
ve

d.
4.

W
he

re
 n

o 
na

tu
ra

l b
uf

fe
r e

xi
st

s d
ue

 to
 p

re
ex

is
tin

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

s (
e.

g.
, b

ui
ld

in
gs

, p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
ts

, r
oa

dw
ay

s, 
ut

ili
ty

 li
ne

s, 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, i
m

pe
rv

io
us

 su
rf

ac
es

) t
ha

t o
cc

ur
re

d
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
in

iti
at

io
n 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r t

he
cu

rr
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 si

te
, t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 is
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 se

ct
io

n,
 u

nl
es

s p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 p

re
ex

is
tin

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

.
5.

W
he

re
 so

m
e 

na
tu

ra
l b

uf
fe

r e
xi

st
s b

ut
 p

or
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
w

ith
in

 2
5 

fe
et

 o
f t

he
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 a
re

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
by

 p
re

ex
is

tin
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
s, 

th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 se

ct
io

n.
 O

nl
y 

th
e 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 b
uf

fe
r z

on
e 

th
at

 c
on

ta
in

s t
he

 fo
ot

pr
in

t o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

“s
tru

ct
ur

e”
 is

 e
xe

m
pt

  f
ro

m
 th

e 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e.
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
us

es
 a

re
 a

llo
w

ed
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 n
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l v
eg

et
at

io
n 

is
 re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
bu

ff
er

 z
on

e.
6.

Fo
r “

lin
ea

r c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
”,

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 is
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 se

ct
io

n 
if 

si
te

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 (e
.g

., 
lim

ite
d 

rig
ht

-o
f-

w
ay

) p
re

ve
nt

 th
e

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 fr
om

 m
ee

tin
g 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

, t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
, d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
s w

ith
in

 2
5 

fe
et

 o
f t

he
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d 

an
d/

or
 su

pp
le

m
en

ta
l

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls

 to
 tr

ea
t s

to
rm

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s f
ro

m
 e

ar
th

di
st

ur
ba

nc
es

 w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f t
he

 su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 It
 m

us
t b

e 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 a
s t

o 
w

hy
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
is

 in
fe

as
ib

le
, a

nd
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

an
y 

bu
ff

er
w

id
th

 re
ta

in
ed

 a
nd

/o
r s

up
pl

em
en

ta
l e

ro
si

on
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 in

st
al

le
d.

7.
Fo

r “
sm

al
l r

es
id

en
tia

l l
ot

” 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
(i.

e.
, a

 lo
t b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l p

ur
po

se
s t

ha
t w

ill
 d

is
tu

rb
 le

ss
 th

an
 1

 a
cr

e 
of

 la
nd

, b
ut

 is
 p

ar
t o

f a
 la

rg
er

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l p

ro
je

ct
th

at
 w

ill
 u

lti
m

at
el

y 
di

st
ur

b 
gr

ea
te

r t
ha

n 
or

 e
qu

al
 to

 1
 a

cr
e)

, y
ou

 h
av

e 
th

e 
op

tio
n 

of
 c

om
pl

yi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

r l
im

iti
ng

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f t
he

 su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 a

nd
/o

r
pr

ov
id

e 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
l e

ro
si

on
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 to

 tr
ea

t s
to

rm
w

at
er

di
sc

ha
rg

es
 fr

om
 e

ar
th

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

s w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f t
he

 su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
.

8.
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
es

 w
ith

in
 2

5 
fe

et
 o

f a
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 a
re

 e
xe

m
pt

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 P

ar
t:

(a
)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 u

nd
er

 a
 C

W
A

 S
ec

tio
n 

40
4 

pe
rm

it;
 o

r
(b

)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 w
at

er
-d

ep
en

de
nt

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
or

 w
at

er
 a

cc
es

s a
re

a 
(e

.g
., 

pi
er

, b
oa

t r
am

p,
 tr

ai
l)

C
.

So
il 

St
ab

ili
za

tio
n

Fi
na

l s
ta

bi
liz

at
io

n 
of

 d
is

tu
rb

ed
 a

re
as

 m
us

t, 
at

 a
 m

in
im

um
, b

e 
in

iti
at

ed
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 w

he
ne

ve
r a

ny
 c

le
ar

in
g,

 g
ra

di
ng

, e
xc

av
at

in
g 

or
 o

th
er

 e
ar

th
 d

is
tu

rb
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 h

av
e 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
ce

as
ed

 o
n 

an
y 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 si
te

. T
em

po
ra

ry
 st

ab
ili

za
tio

n 
of

 d
is

tu
rb

ed
 a

re
as

 m
us

t b
e 

in
iti

at
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 w
he

ne
ve

r w
or

k 
to

w
ar

d 
pr

oj
ec

t c
om

pl
et

io
n 

an
d 

fin
al

 st
ab

ili
za

tio
n 

of
 a

y
po

rti
on

 o
f t

he
 si

te
 h

as
 te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
ce

as
ed

 o
n 

an
y 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 si
te

 a
nd

w
ill

 n
ot

 re
su

m
e 

fo
r a

 p
er

io
d 

ex
ce

ed
in

g 
th

irt
ee

n 
(1

3)
 c

al
en

da
r d

ay
s.

D
.

Po
llu

tio
n 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t d
es

ig
n,

 in
st

al
l, 

im
pl

em
en

t, 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
po

llu
tio

n 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s t
o 

m
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

of
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s. 
A

t a
 m

in
im

um
, s

uc
h 

m
ea

su
re

s m
us

t b
e

de
si

gn
ed

, i
ns

ta
lle

d,
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
to

:
1.

M
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

of
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s f
ro

m
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 v
eh

ic
le

 w
as

hi
ng

, w
he

el
 w

as
h 

w
at

er
, c

on
cr

et
e 

w
as

ho
ut

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 w

as
h 

w
at

er
s. 

W
as

h 
w

at
er

s m
us

t b
e 

tre
at

ed
 in

 a
se

di
m

en
t b

as
in

 o
r a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
co

nt
ro

l t
ha

t p
ro

vi
de

s e
qu

iv
al

en
t o

r b
et

te
r t

re
at

m
en

t p
rio

r t
o 

di
sc

ha
rg

e;
(a

)
Li

qu
id

 w
as

te
 sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
ed

 in
to

 st
or

m
 se

w
er

s.
(b

)
W

as
ho

ut
 a

nd
 c

le
an

ou
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
as

 fa
r a

w
ay

 a
s p

os
si

bl
e 

fr
om

 su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
s, 

na
tu

ra
l b

uf
fe

r a
re

as
, s

to
rm

w
at

er
 in

le
ts

, a
nd

 c
on

ve
ya

nc
es

.
2.

M
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
ex

po
su

re
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, b
ui

ld
in

g 
pr

od
uc

ts
, c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
as

te
s, 

tra
sh

, l
an

ds
ca

pe
 m

at
er

ia
ls

, f
er

til
iz

er
s, 

pe
st

ic
id

es
, h

er
bi

ci
de

s, 
de

te
rg

en
ts

, s
an

ita
ry

 w
as

te
an

d 
ot

he
r m

at
er

ia
ls

 p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

si
te

 to
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

to
 st

or
m

w
at

er
;

3.
M

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s f

ro
m

 a
ny

 sp
ill

s a
nd

 le
ak

s f
ro

m
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 v

eh
ic

le
s;

 m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l e

qu
ip

m
en

t; 
ch

em
ic

al
 st

or
ag

e;
 a

nd
 re

fu
el

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

;
an

d
4.

U
se

 o
f p

ol
ym

er
s, 

flo
cc

ul
an

ts
, o

r o
th

er
 tr

ea
tm

en
t c

he
m

ic
al

s a
t t

he
 si

te
 m

ay
 o

nl
y 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
w

he
re

 tr
ea

te
d 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 to

 a
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

l p
rio

r t
o 

di
sc

ha
rg

e.
E

.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

B
es

t M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ra
ct

ic
es

 P
la

n 
(C

B
M

PP
) (

PA
R

T
)

5.
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
 U

pd
at

ed
 C

B
M

PP
(a

)
Th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 sh

al
l b

e 
up

da
te

d 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

, s
ite

 w
ea

th
er

 p
at

te
rn

s, 
ne

w
 T

M
D

Ls
 fi

na
liz

ed
 o

r a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 E
PA

, n
ew

 3
03

(d
)

lis
tin

gs
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 E

PA
, o

r m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
pe

ci
fic

 c
on

tro
l

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

.
(b

)
Th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 sh

al
l b

e 
am

en
de

d 
if 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 o

r i
nv

es
tig

at
io

ns
 b

y 
si

te
 st

af
f o

r b
y 

lo
ca

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r f

ed
er

al
 o

ff
ic

ia
ls

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

se
di

m
en

t
co

nt
ro

l m
ea

su
re

s, 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l m
ea

su
re

s, 
or

 o
th

er
 si

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

re
 in

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
or

 d
o 

no
t m

ee
t t

he
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it.

 A
ll 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 sh
al

l b
e 

m
ad

e 
w

ith
in

 se
ve

n 
(7

) c
al

en
da

r d
ay

s f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

no
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

un
le

ss
 g

ra
nt

ed
 a

n 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 ti

m
e 

by
 th

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.
(c

)
If

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

l m
ea

su
re

s, 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l m
ea

su
re

s, 
or

 o
th

er
 si

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 p

ro
ve

 in
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
 p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

or
 n

ee
d

to
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
; o

r i
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
l m

ea
su

re
s, 

er
os

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l m

ea
su

re
s, 

or
 o

th
er

 si
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

of
 P

ar
t I

II
.A

. B
. C

. D
. a

nd
 E

., 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
ne

xt
 st

or
m

 e
ve

nt
 w

he
ne

ve
r p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
. I

f i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
ne

xt
 st

or
m

ev
en

t i
s i

m
pr

ac
tic

ab
le

, t
he

n 
ne

w
 la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 m
us

t c
ea

se
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 o
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
on

tro
ls

 c
an

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

(d
)

A
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 sh

al
l b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
at

 th
e 

si
te

 d
ur

in
g 

no
rm

al
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ho
ur

s a
s d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
Pa

rt 
V

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
w

he
n 

re
gu

la
te

d 
la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
in

g
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

re
 o

cc
ur

rin
g.

F.
Sp

ill
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 C

on
tr

ol
, a

nd
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l p

re
pa

re
, i

m
pl

em
en

t, 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
Sp

ill
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 C

on
tro

l a
nd

 C
ou

nt
er

m
ea

su
re

s (
SP

C
C

) P
la

n 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 4
0 

C
FR

 P
ar

t 1
12

 a
nd

A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r.3

35
-6

-6
-.1

2(
r)

 fo
r a

ll 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 o
ns

ite
 p

et
ro

le
um

 st
or

ag
e 

ta
nk

s. 
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l a

ls
o 

pr
ep

ar
e,

 im
pl

em
en

t, 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
SP

C
C

 P
la

n
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r.3

35
-6

-6
-.1

2(
r)

 fo
r a

ny
 st

or
ed

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
(s

) t
ha

t m
ay

, i
f s

pi
lle

d,
 b

e 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 e
nt

er
 a

 w
at

er
 o

f t
he

 st
at

e 
or

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 fo
r a

 p
ub

lic
ly

 o
r p

riv
at

el
y 

ow
ne

d 
tre

at
m

en
t w

or
ks

. T
he

 S
PC

C
 P

la
n(

s)
 sh

al
l b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
as

 a
 se

pa
ra

te
 d

oc
um

en
t o

r a
s p

ar
t o

f t
he

 C
B

M
PP

Pl
an

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
 P

ar
t I

II
.D

. T
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 sh

al
l i

m
pl

em
en

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 st
ru

ct
ur

al
 a

nd
/o

r n
on

-s
tru

ct
ur

al
 sp

ill
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 c

on
tro

l, 
an

d/
or

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

ny
 sp

ill
s o

f p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s f

ro
m

 e
nt

er
in

g 
a 

w
at

er
 o

f t
he

 st
at

e 
or

 a
 p

ub
lic

ly
 o

r p
riv

at
el

y 
ow

ne
d 

tre
at

m
en

t w
or

ks
. T

he
 p

la
n(

s)
 m

us
t

be
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 4

0 
C

FR
 P

ar
t 1

12
 a

nd
/o

r A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r.3

35
-6

-6
-.1

2(
r)

. A
ny

 c
on

ta
in

m
en

t s
ys

te
m

 u
se

d 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
hi

s
re

qu
ire

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
be

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e(

s)
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 a
nd

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls

 w
hi

ch
 sh

al
l p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

of
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
an

d 
sh

al
l b

e 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 re
ta

in
in

g 
11

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 v

ol
um

e 
of

 th
e 

la
rg

es
t c

on
ta

in
er

 o
f p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s f
or

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
ai

nm
en

t s
ys

te
m

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 T
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
sh

al
l m

ai
nt

ai
n 

on
si

te
 o

r h
av

e 
re

ad
ily

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 o
il 

&
 g

re
as

e 
ab

so
rb

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 a
flo

ta
tio

n 
bo

om
s t

o 
co

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
cl

ea
n-

up
 fu

el
 o

r c
he

m
ic

al
sp

ill
s a

nd
 le

ak
s. 

So
il 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 b
y 

pa
in

t o
r c

he
m

ic
al

 sp
ill

s, 
oi

l s
pi

lls
, e

tc
. m

us
t b

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 c

le
an

ed
 u

p,
 re

m
ed

ia
te

d,
 o

r b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 a
nd

 d
is

po
se

d 
of

 in
 a

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

pp
ro

ve
d 

m
an

ne
r.

G
.

T
ra

in
in

g
U

nl
es

s t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 h

as
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 o
r c

on
tra

ct
ed

 w
ith

 a
 Q

C
P 

th
at

 p
er

fo
rm

s d
ut

ie
s a

s r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 th
is

 p
er

m
it,

 a
nd

 th
e 

Q
C

P 
is

 re
ad

ily
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

ab
le

 to
 b

e
pr

es
en

t o
ns

ite
 a

s o
fte

n 
as

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
fu

ll 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it,

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

:
1.

A
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 o
ns

ite
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l b
e 

ce
rti

fie
d 

as
 a

 Q
ua

lif
ie

d 
C

re
de

nt
ia

le
d 

In
sp

ec
to

r (
Q

C
I)

 b
y 

co
m

pl
et

in
g 

an
 in

iti
al

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 a
nn

ua
l r

ef
re

sh
er

s t
hr

ou
gh

an
 A

D
EM

-a
pp

ro
ve

d 
Q

ua
lif

ie
d 

C
re

de
nt

ia
le

d 
In

sp
ec

to
r P

ro
gr

am
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 b
y 

a 
co

op
er

at
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
en

tit
y.

2.
Th

e 
Q

C
IP

 m
us

t b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t p

rio
r t

o 
us

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
tra

in
in

g 
in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s:

(a
)

Th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 A
la

ba
m

a 
N

PD
ES

 ru
le

s;
(b

)
Th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it;

(c
)

Th
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
s t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 Q
C

P 
de

si
gn

ed
 a

nd
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

er
os

io
n 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
nd

 se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

 a
 C

B
M

PP
 a

re
 e

ff
ec

tiv
el

y
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
(d

)
Th

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 c

on
ve

ya
nc

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 w

at
er

s a
nd

 a
dj

ac
en

t i
m

pa
ct

ed
 o

ff
si

te
 a

re
as

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it;
 a

nd
3.

Ea
ch

 in
di

vi
du

al
 h

ol
di

ng
 a

 Q
C

I C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
ne

ed
 n

ot
 b

e 
on

-s
ite

 c
on

tin
uo

us
ly

 a
nd

 th
ey

 m
ay

 c
on

du
ct

 si
te

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 a

t m
ul

tip
le

 si
te

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

em
 o

r
th

ei
r e

m
pl

oy
er

.
4.

Ea
ch

 in
di

vi
du

al
 h

ol
di

ng
 Q

C
I c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

sh
al

l o
bt

ai
n 

an
nu

al
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 fo
rm

al
 re

fr
es

he
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

or
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 re

ga
rd

in
g

ge
ne

ra
l e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
, t

he
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it,

 a
nd

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 tu
rb

id
ity

 m
et

er
 o

r s
im

ila
r d

ev
ic

e 
in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r t
he

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f t

ur
bi

di
ty

. T
he

 re
fr

es
he

r t
ra

in
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

ur
ric

ul
a,

 c
ou

rs
e 

co
nt

en
t, 

co
ur

se
 le

ng
th

, a
nd

 a
ny

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
 te

st
in

g,
 sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 p

rio
r t

o 
us

e.
H

.
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
1.

Pr
e-

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
O

bs
er

va
tio

ns
(a

)
A

 p
re

-c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
pr

io
r t

he
 p

la
ce

m
en

t o
f a

ny
 B

M
Ps

, o
r t

he
 c

om
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f l

an
d 

di
st

ur
bi

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

.
(b

)
Pr

e-
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l c
on

si
st

 o
f a

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

en
tir

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l p
ro

po
se

d 
ar

ea
s

of
 la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
, p

ro
po

se
d 

ar
ea

s u
se

d 
fo

r s
to

ra
ge

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

ex
po

se
d 

to
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n,

 a
ff

ec
te

d 
di

tc
he

s, 
an

d 
ot

he
r s

to
rm

w
at

er
 c

on
ve

ya
nc

es
, a

s
w

el
l a

s a
ll 

pr
op

os
ed

 o
ut

fa
lls

, r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 w

at
er

s a
nd

 st
re

am
 b

an
ks

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pr

e-
ex

is
tin

g 
ar

ea
s o

f c
on

ce
rn

.
(c

)
Pr

e-
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Q
C

P;
(d

)
Th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

an
d 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t u
po

n 
re

qu
es

t;
(e

)
Pr

e-
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

 d
at

ed
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
ph

ot
og

ra
ph

ic
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 (b
) a

bo
ve

;
(f

)
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
co

rd
 o

f t
he

 p
re

-c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 P

ar
t I

V
.J.

2.
D

ai
ly

 O
bs

er
va

tio
ns

(a
)

Ea
ch

 d
ay

 th
er

e 
is

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
t t

he
 si

te
, t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 sh
al

l v
is

ua
lly

 o
bs

er
ve

 th
at

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t w
he

re
 a

ct
iv

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 w

or
k,

 o
r

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

oc
cu

rr
ed

 to
 n

ot
e 

an
y 

ra
in

fa
ll 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 o

bs
er

va
tio

n,
 a

nd
 a

ny
 a

pp
ar

en
t B

M
P 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f a
ct

iv
e

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e.

(b
)

Su
ch

 d
ai

ly
 o

bs
er

va
tio

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 si

te
 p

er
so

nn
el

.
(c

)
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
lo

g 
of

 a
ll 

da
ily

 o
bs

er
va

tio
ns

 a
nd

 re
co

rd
 in

 su
ch

 lo
g 

an
y 

ra
in

fa
ll 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 B

M
P 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s o

bs
er

ve
d.

3.
Si

te
 In

sp
ec

tio
ns

(a
)

A
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l c
on

si
st

 o
f a

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 o
bs

er
va

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
en

tir
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l a
re

as
 o

f l
an

d 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 a

re
as

us
ed

 fo
r s

to
ra

ge
 o

f m
at

er
ia

ls
 th

at
 a

re
 e

xp
os

ed
 to

 p
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n,
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t s
to

ra
ge

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
re

as
, a

ff
ec

te
d 

di
tc

he
s a

nd
 o

th
er

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
on

ve
ya

nc
es

, a
s

w
el

l a
s a

ll 
ou

tfa
lls

, r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 w

at
er

s a
nd

 st
re

am
 b

an
ks

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if,

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

:
(i)

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 h

av
e 

be
en

 fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

er
m

it,
 th

e 
si

te
 C

B
M

PP
, a

nd
 th

e
A

la
ba

m
a 

H
an

db
oo

k;
(ii

)
Po

llu
ta

nt
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s a
re

 b
ei

ng
 p

re
ve

nt
ed

/m
in

im
iz

ed
 to

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 e
xt

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
, a

nd
 D

is
ch

ar
ge

s a
re

 n
ot

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
no

t r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 a
 c

on
tra

ve
nt

io
n

of
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 S
ta

te
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s f
or

 th
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
st

re
am

(s
) o

r o
th

er
 w

at
er

s i
m

pa
ct

ed
 o

r a
ff

ec
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

.
(b

)
Si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
a 

Q
C

I, 
Q

C
P,

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

pe
rs

on
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

di
re

ct
 su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
of

 a
 Q

C
P.

(c
)

Fo
r n

on
-li

ne
ar

 p
ro

je
ct

s, 
a 

si
te

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 o
nc

e 
ea

ch
 m

on
th

 a
nd

 a
fte

r a
ny

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

ev
en

t, 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 a

s p
ro

m
pt

ly
 a

s
po

ss
ib

le
, b

ut
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

24
-h

ou
rs

 a
fte

r r
es

um
in

g 
or

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 a

ct
iv

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

, a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

72
-h

ou
rs

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e
qu

al
ify

in
g 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

ev
en

t;
(d

)
Fo

r l
in

ea
r p

ro
je

ct
s w

he
re

 a
ct

iv
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

or
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 p

er
en

ni
al

 v
eg

et
at

io
n 

ha
s n

ot
 b

ee
n 

fu
lly

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d,

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f f

in
al

st
ab

ili
za

tio
n,

 a
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

nc
e 

a 
m

on
th

 a
nd

 a
fte

r a
ny

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

ev
en

t s
in

ce
 th

e 
la

st
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 a

s
pr

om
pt

ly
 a

s p
os

si
bl

e,
 b

ut
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

24
-h

ou
rs

 a
fte

r r
es

um
in

g 
or

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 a

ct
iv

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

fiv
e 

(5
) d

ay
s a

fte
r

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
pr

ec
ip

ita
tio

n 
ev

en
t;

(e
)

A
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l a
ls

o 
be

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 a

s o
fte

n 
as

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 u
nt

il 
an

y 
po

or
ly

 fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
 o

r s
ed

im
en

t c
on

tro
ls

, n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nt
di

sc
ha

rg
es

, o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s o
bs

er
ve

d 
du

rin
g 

a 
pr

io
r i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
ar

e 
co

rr
ec

te
d 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s
pe

rm
it.

(f
)

O
n 

al
l a

ct
iv

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 d

re
dg

in
g,

 e
xc

av
at

io
n,

 o
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
or

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ba

nk
s o

f a
 w

at
er

bo
dy

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

,
eq

ui
pm

en
t/v

eh
ic

le
 c

ro
ss

in
gs

, p
ip

el
in

es
, o

r o
th

er
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 li

ne
 in

st
al

la
tio

n,
 c

on
ve

yo
r s

tru
ct

ur
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n,

 a
nd

 w
at

er
bo

dy
 re

lo
ca

tio
n,

 st
re

am
ba

nk
st

ab
ili

za
tio

n,
 o

r o
th

er
 a

lte
ra

tio
ns

, a
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

nc
e 

a 
w

ee
k 

an
d 

as
 o

fte
n 

as
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e/

ac
tiv

ity
 im

pa
ct

in
g 

th
e

w
at

er
bo

dy
 is

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
re

cl
am

at
io

n 
or

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
is

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
(g

)
Th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 in
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

fo
rm

at
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t. 

Th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

co
rd

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

:
(i)

Th
e 

si
te

 n
am

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
tio

n,
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 p
oi

nt
 n

um
be

r, 
da

te
, t

im
e 

an
d 

ex
ac

t p
la

ce
 o

f a
ny

 sa
m

pl
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

;
(ii

)
Th

e 
na

m
e(

s)
 o

f p
er

so
n(

s)
 w

ho
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d/
or

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
an

y 
sa

m
pl

es
 o

r m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 ta

ke
n;

(ii
i)

Th
e 

da
te

s a
nd

 ti
m

es
 o

f t
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
an

y 
sa

m
pl

es
 o

r m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 ta

ke
n;

(iv
)

A
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 sa
m

pl
in

g 
an

d 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 te
ch

ni
qu

es
 o

r m
et

ho
ds

 u
se

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

so
ur

ce
 o

f m
et

ho
d 

an
d 

m
et

ho
d 

nu
m

be
r;

(v
)

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f a
ny

 a
na

ly
se

s p
er

fo
rm

ed
;

(v
i)

W
ea

th
er

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n;
(v

ii)
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s o

f s
ed

im
en

t o
r o

th
er

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

si
te

;
(v

iii
)

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f d

is
ch

ar
ge

s o
f s

ed
im

en
t o

r o
th

er
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
si

te
;

(ix
)

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f B

M
Ps

 th
at

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d;

(x
)

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f B

M
Ps

 th
at

 fa
ile

d 
to

 o
pe

ra
te

 a
s d

es
ig

ne
d;

(x
i)

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
he

re
 B

M
Ps

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 a

re
 n

ot
 in

st
al

le
d 

or
 in

st
al

le
d 

in
 a

 m
an

ne
r i

nc
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
C

B
M

PP
; a

nd
(x

ii)
Lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

he
re

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 B

M
Ps

 a
re

 n
ee

de
d 

th
at

 d
id

 n
ot

 e
xi

st
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n.
 T

hi
s r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t i

s a
pp

lic
ab

le
 o

nl
y 

to
 si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
a 

Q
C

P 
or

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
pe

rs
on

s u
nd

er
 th

e 
di

re
ct

 su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

of
 a

 Q
C

P.
(h

)
R

es
ul

ts
 o

f a
ll 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 sh

al
l b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
no

 la
te

r t
ha

n 
15

 d
ay

s f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

, m
on

ito
rin

g 
or

 sa
m

pl
in

g.
(i)

R
ep

or
ts

 sh
al

l b
e 

le
gi

bl
e 

an
d 

be
ar

 a
n 

or
ig

in
al

 si
gn

at
ur

e 
or

 in
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

re
po

rts
, a

n 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

si
gn

at
ur

e.
4.

C
B

M
PP

 E
va

lu
at

io
ns

(a
)

Th
e 

Q
C

P 
sh

al
l p

er
fo

rm
 a

n 
on

si
te

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
er

os
io

n 
an

d 
se

di
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 b

ei
ng

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r a

de
qu

ac
y 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

w
ith

 si
te

 c
on

di
tio

ns
.

(b
)

Th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 a

s o
fte

n 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 u

nt
il 

po
or

ly
 fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

 o
r d

am
ag

ed
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
 o

r s
ed

im
en

t c
on

tro
ls

 a
re

 c
or

re
ct

ed
,

an
d,

 a
t a

 m
in

im
um

, o
nc

e 
ev

er
y 

si
x 

m
on

th
s.

(c
)

If
, b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 e
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

Q
C

P 
id

en
tif

ie
s a

ny
 n

ee
de

d 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 o

r a
dd

iti
on

s t
o 

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

t c
on

tro
ls,

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 sh
al

l b
e

up
da

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

II
.D

.4
.

(d
)

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 e
va

lu
at

io
n.

I.
C

or
re

ct
iv

e 
A

ct
io

n
A

ny
 p

oo
rly

 fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
 o

r s
ed

im
en

t c
on

tro
ls

, n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nt
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s, 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s o

bs
er

ve
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 re
qu

ire
d

un
de

r P
ar

t I
II

.G
.2

 sh
al

l b
e 

co
rr

ec
te

d 
as

 so
on

 a
s p

os
si

bl
e,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
fiv

e 
(5

) d
ay

s o
f t

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

un
le

ss
 p

re
ve

nt
ed

 b
y 

un
sa

fe
 w

ea
th

er
 c

on
di

tio
ns

.
5.

In
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f a
 b

re
ac

h 
of

 a
 se

di
m

en
t b

as
in

/p
on

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 c
on

ta
in

m
en

t m
ea

su
re

s s
ha

ll 
be

 ta
ke

n 
w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s a
fte

r t
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n.
 P

er
m

an
en

t
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s s
ha

ll 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ith

in
 fi

ve
 (5

) d
ay

s o
f t

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
n;

 h
ow

ev
er

, i
f p

er
m

an
en

t c
or

re
ct

iv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s c
an

no
t b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e

tim
ef

ra
m

es
pr

ov
id

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l c

on
ta

ct
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t; 
an

d
6.

Th
e 

op
er

at
or

 sh
al

l p
ro

m
pt

ly
 ta

ke
 a

ll 
re

as
on

ab
le

 st
ep

s t
o 

re
m

ov
e,

 to
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

al
, p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s d
ep

os
ite

d 
of

fs
ite

 o
r i

n 
an

y 
w

at
er

bo
dy

 o
r

st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
on

ve
ya

nc
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
J.

Su
sp

en
si

on
 o

f M
on

ito
ri

ng
Su

sp
en

si
on

 o
f a

pp
lic

ab
le

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r p

ha
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 o

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d 
pr

ov
id

ed
:

1.
Th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
s n

ot
ifi

ed
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

at
 le

as
t t

hi
rty

 d
ay

s p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
su

sp
en

si
on

;
2.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 a
nd

 th
e 

Q
C

P 
ce

rti
fy

 in
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t t
ha

t a
ll 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

ha
s b

ee
n 

gr
ad

ed
, s

ta
bi

liz
ed

, a
nd

/o
r f

ul
ly

 v
eg

et
at

ed
 o

r o
th

er
w

is
e 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
 c

ov
er

ed
,

an
d 

th
at

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
st

ep
s h

av
e 

be
en

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
by

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

an
d 

co
m

m
it 

th
at

th
es

e 
m

ea
su

re
s

w
ill

 re
m

ai
n 

co
nt

in
ua

lly
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

un
til

 th
e 

pe
rm

it 
is

 p
ro

pe
rly

 te
rm

in
at

ed
;

3.
Th

e 
re

qu
es

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

cc
om

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
a 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

po
rt 

co
nf

irm
in

g 
pe

rm
an

en
t s

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
is

tu
rb

ed
 a

re
as

,
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

l s
to

ra
ge

 a
re

as
, a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
su

pp
or

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 p

ho
to

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 fo

r c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
pu

rp
os

es
; a

nd
4.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 n
ot

ifi
es

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
w

ith
in

 1
5 

da
ys

 p
rio

r t
o 

re
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

r c
om

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f t
he

 n
ex

t p
ha

se
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
an

d 
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 c

om
pl

ie
s w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s P
er

m
it 

pr
io

r t
o 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
.

K
.

Pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l m

ea
su

re
 a

nd
 re

co
rd

 a
ll 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
at

 th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

. P
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 sh
al

l b
e 

ta
ke

n 
us

in
g 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 re

co
rd

er
s,

da
ily

 re
ad

in
gs

 o
f a

n 
on

si
te

 ra
in

 g
au

ge
, d

ai
ly

 re
ad

in
gs

 o
f a

n 
of

fs
ite

 p
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n 
ga

ug
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 o

r i
n 

cl
os

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 (m

ax
im

um
 1

 m
ile

 d
is

ta
nc

e)
 to

 th
e

fa
ci

lit
y,

 o
r b

y 
ot

he
r m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

ev
ic

es
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t (

e.
g.

 o
nl

in
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s)
. P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 m

us
t b

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

of
 th

e
Pe

rm
itt

ee
’s

 si
te

.
L

.
Im

pa
ir

ed
 W

at
er

s a
nd

 T
ot

al
 M

ax
im

um
 D

ai
ly

 L
oa

d 
(T

M
D

L
) W

at
er

s
1.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
fr

om
 a

ny
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 c

on
tri

bu
te

s d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r i

nd
ire

ct
ly

 to
 a

 w
at

er
bo

dy
 th

at
 is

in
cl

ud
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

la
te

st
 §

30
3(

d)
 li

st
 o

r d
es

ig
na

te
d 

by
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
s i

m
pa

ire
d;

2.
If

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

’s
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s t

o 
a 

w
at

er
bo

dy
 in

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
la

te
st

 §
30

3(
d)

 o
r d

es
ig

na
te

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

s i
m

pa
ire

d,
 it

 m
us

t
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
es

, a
s c

on
tro

lle
d 

by
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
, d

o 
no

t c
au

se
 o

r c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

im
pa

irm
en

t. 
Th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 m

us
t d

et
ai

l t
he

 B
M

Ps
 th

at
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

ut
ili

ze
d 

to
 c

on
tro

l d
is

ch
ar

ge
s o

f p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
im

pa
irm

en
t. 

If
 e

xi
st

in
g 

B
M

Ps
 a

re
 n

ot
 su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is 
de

m
on

st
ra

tio
n,

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t,
w

ith
in

 si
xt

y 
(6

0)
 d

ay
s f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

la
te

st
 fi

na
l §

30
3(

d)
 li

st
, D

ep
ar

tm
en

t d
es

ig
na

tio
n,

 o
r t

he
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

da
te

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it,
 su

bm
it 

a 
re

vi
se

d
C

B
M

PP
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

ne
w

 o
r m

od
ifi

ed
 B

M
Ps

. T
he

 C
B

M
PP

 m
us

t b
e 

re
vi

se
d 

as
 d

ire
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

ne
w

 o
r m

od
ifi

ed
 B

M
Ps

 m
us

t b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

w
ith

in
 n

in
et

y 
(9

0)
 d

ay
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
la

te
st

 fi
na

l §
30

3(
d)

 li
st

 o
r D

ep
ar

tm
en

t d
es

ig
na

tio
n.

3.
Pe

rm
itt

ee
s d

is
ch

ar
gi

ng
 fr

om
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

s i
nt

o 
w

at
er

s w
ith

 E
PA

-A
pp

ro
ve

d 
TM

D
Ls

 a
nd

/o
r E

PA
 E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
TM

D
Ls

(a
)

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 it
s c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s t

o 
a 

w
at

er
bo

dy
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 a

 to
ta

l m
ax

im
um

 d
ai

ly
 lo

ad
 (T

M
D

L)
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d

or
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 E

PA
. I

f a
n 

M
S4

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s i

nt
o 

a 
w

at
er

 b
od

y 
w

ith
 a

n 
EP

A
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

or
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
TM

D
L,

 th
en

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 B
M

Ps
 ta

rg
et

ed
 to

m
ee

t t
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 T

M
D

L.
 If

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 B

M
Ps

 w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 T

M
D

L,
 th

e 
C

B
M

PP
 m

us
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

sc
he

du
le

 fo
r i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
an

d/
or

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 su
ch

 B
M

Ps
.

(b
)

If
, d

ur
in

g 
th

is
 p

er
m

it 
cy

cl
e,

 a
 T

M
D

L 
is

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 E
PA

 o
r a

 T
M

D
L 

is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
by

 E
PA

 fo
r a

ny
 w

at
er

bo
dy

 in
to

 w
hi

ch
 a

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s,
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 m

us
t r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 T
M

D
L 

to
 se

e 
if 

it 
in

cl
ud

es
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r c
on

tro
l o

f s
to

rm
 w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

.
(i)

If
 it

 is
 fo

un
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t i
m

pl
em

en
t s

pe
ci

fic
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 T

M
D

L,
 it

 m
us

t a
ss

es
s w

he
th

er
 th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 T
M

D
L

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

et
 th

ro
ug

h 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

B
M

Ps
 o

r i
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 B
M

Ps
 a

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. T
he

 C
B

M
PP

 m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 B
M

Ps
 ta

rg
et

ed
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

an
d 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 T

M
D

L.
 If

 e
xi

st
in

g 
B

M
Ps

 a
re

 n
ot

 su
ff

ic
ie

nt
, t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 m
us

t, 
w

ith
in

 si
xt

y 
(6

o)
 d

ay
s f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

r e
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f t

he
TM

D
L 

by
 E

PA
, s

ub
m

it 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

C
B

M
PP

 d
et

ai
lin

g 
ne

w
 o

r m
od

ifi
ed

 B
M

Ps
 to

 b
e 

ut
ili

ze
d 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 a

 sc
he

du
le

 o
f i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
an

d/
or

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 su
ch

B
M

Ps
. A

ny
 n

ew
 o

r m
od

ifi
ed

 B
M

Ps
 m

us
t b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d
w

ith
in

 n
in

et
y 

(9
0)

 d
ay

s, 
un

le
ss

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
da

te
 is

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

fr
om

 th
e

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
r a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 T
M

D
L 

by
 E

PA
.

PA
R

T 
IV

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
an

d 
G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 (P
A

R
T)

A
.

D
ut

y 
to

 C
om

pl
y

1.
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 a

ll 
te

rm
s a

nd
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it.
 A

ny
 p

er
m

it 
no

nc
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

co
ns

tit
ut

es
 a

 v
io

la
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

A
W

PC
A

 a
nd

 th
e

FW
PC

A
 a

nd
 is

 g
ro

un
ds

 fo
r: 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

ct
io

n,
 te

rm
in

at
io

n,
 o

r s
us

pe
ns

io
n 

of
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

un
de

r t
hi

s p
er

m
it;

 d
en

ia
l o

f a
 p

er
m

it 
re

ne
w

al
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n;
 a

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

ha
t t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 su
bm

it 
an

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 N
PD

ES
 p

er
m

it.
2.

Fo
r a

ny
 v

io
la

tio
n(

s)
 o

f t
hi

s P
er

m
it,

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

ci
vi

l p
en

al
ty

 a
s a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
W

PC
A

, t
he

 F
W

PC
A

, a
nd

 C
od

e 
of

 A
la

ba
m

a
19

75
, §

§2
2-

22
A

-1
 e

t. 
se

q.
, a

s a
m

en
de

d,
 a

nd
/o

r a
 c

rim
in

al
 p

en
al

ty
 a

s a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
C

od
e 

of
 A

la
ba

m
a 

19
75

, §
22

-2
2-

1 
et

. s
eq

., 
as

 a
m

en
de

d.
3.

Th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 a
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

 fr
om

 a
 so

ur
ce

 n
ot

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
N

O
I t

o 
be

 c
ov

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

is
 P

er
m

it 
an

d 
no

t s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
ou

tfa
ll 

(w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

) i
n 

th
is

 p
er

m
it 

is
 n

ot
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 a
nd

 sh
al

l c
on

st
itu

te
 n

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

er
m

it.
4.

N
ot

hi
ng

 in
 th

is
 P

er
m

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

ns
tru

ed
 to

 p
re

cl
ud

e 
or

 n
eg

at
e 

th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

’s
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

or
 li

ab
ili

ty
 to

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r, 
ob

ta
in

, o
r c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 o

th
er

A
D

EM
, f

ed
er

al
, s

ta
te

, o
r l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t p

er
m

its
, c

er
tif

ic
at

io
ns

, l
ic

en
se

s, 
or

 o
th

er
 a

pp
ro

va
ls

.
B

.
D

ut
y 

to
 R

ea
pp

ly
1.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 to

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it,

 w
ho

 w
is

he
s t

o 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 u

po
n 

th
e 

ex
pi

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 p
er

m
it,

 sh
al

l s
ub

m
it

a 
N

O
I t

o 
be

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
is

su
ed

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it.

 S
uc

h 
N

O
I s

ha
ll 

be
 su

bm
itt

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 3

0 
da

ys
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
ex

pi
ra

tio
n 

da
te

 o
f t

hi
s G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it.
2.

Fa
ilu

re
 o

f t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 to

 su
bm

it 
a 

co
m

pl
et

e 
N

O
I f

or
 re

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
un

de
r t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
at

 le
as

t 3
0 

da
ys

 p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

pe
rm

it’
s e

xp
ira

tio
n 

w
ill

 v
oi

d 
th

e
au

to
m

at
ic

 c
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

to
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 u
nd

er
 th

is
 p

er
m

it 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

. C
od

e 
r. 

33
5-

6-
6-

.0
6.

 S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

pe
rm

it 
no

t b
e

re
is

su
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 re

as
on

 p
rio

r t
o 

its
 e

xp
ira

tio
n 

da
te

, P
er

m
itt

ee
s w

ho
 fa

ile
d 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 3

0-
da

y 
su

bm
itt

al
 d

ea
dl

in
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ill
eg

al
ly

 d
is

ch
ar

gi
ng

 w
ith

ou
t a

 p
er

m
it

af
te

r t
he

 e
xp

ira
tio

n 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 p
er

m
it.

C
.

N
ee

d 
to

 H
al

t o
r 

R
ed

uc
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 N
ot

 a
 D

ef
en

se
It 

sh
al

l n
ot

 b
e 

a 
de

fe
ns

e 
fo

r t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 in

 a
n 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
th

at
 it

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 h
al

t o
r r

ed
uc

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

f t
he

 p
er

m
it.

D
.

D
ut

y 
to

 M
iti

ga
te

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l t
ak

e 
al

l r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

st
ep

s t
o 

m
iti

ga
te

 o
r p

re
ve

nt
 a

ny
 v

io
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pe

rm
it 

or
 to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
or

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
ny

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
 o

f a
ny

 p
er

m
it

vi
ol

at
io

n.
E

.
Pr

op
er

 O
pe

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l a

t a
ll 

tim
es

 p
ro

pe
rly

 o
pe

ra
te

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
al

l f
ac

ili
tie

s a
nd

 sy
st

em
s o

f t
re

at
m

en
t a

nd
 c

on
tro

l (
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
ap

pu
rte

na
nc

es
) w

hi
ch

 a
re

in
st

al
le

d 
or

 u
se

d 
by

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it.

 P
ro

pe
r o

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 in
cl

ud
es

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
, a

de
qu

at
e 

fu
nd

in
g,

 a
de

qu
at

e 
op

er
at

or
 st

af
fin

g 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g,
 a

nd
 a

de
qu

at
e 

la
bo

ra
to

ry
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

ss
 c

on
tro

ls
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 q
ua

lit
y

as
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. T
hi

s p
ro

vi
si

on
 re

qu
ire

s t
he

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 b
ac

ku
p 

or
 a

ux
ili

ar
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s o
nl

y 
w

he
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s
of

 th
is

 p
er

m
it.

F.
Pe

rm
it 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n,

 R
ev

oc
at

io
n 

an
d 

R
ei

ss
ua

nc
e,

 S
us

pe
ns

io
n,

 a
nd

 T
er

m
in

at
io

n
1.

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

te
rm

 o
f t

hi
s G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 m

ay
, f

or
 c

au
se

, a
nd

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 n
ot

ic
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
of

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

C
od

e 
r.

33
5-

6-
21

, m
od

ify
 o

r r
ev

ok
e 

an
d 

re
is

su
e 

th
is

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it.

 T
he

 c
au

se
s f

or
 th

is
 a

ct
io

n 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ca

us
es

 li
st

ed
 b

el
ow

:
(a

)
W

he
n 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 re
ce

iv
es

 a
ny

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
as

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 p

er
m

it 
is

su
an

ce
 a

nd
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
ju

st
ifi

ed
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

di
ff

er
en

t p
er

m
it 

co
nd

iti
on

s a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 is

su
an

ce
;

(b
)

W
he

n 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s o

r r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pe

rm
it 

w
as

 b
as

ed
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
ha

ng
ed

 b
y 

pr
om

ul
ga

tio
n 

of
 a

m
en

de
d 

st
an

da
rd

s o
r r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 o

r b
y

ju
di

ci
al

 d
ec

is
io

n 
ar

e 
th

e 
pe

rm
it 

w
as

 is
su

ed
;

(c
)

U
po

n 
fa

ilu
re

 o
f t

he
 st

at
e 

to
 n

ot
ify

, a
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 S

ec
tio

n 
40

2(
b)

(3
) o

f t
he

 F
W

PC
A

, a
no

th
er

 st
at

e 
w

ho
se

 w
at

er
s m

ay
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
a 

di
sc

ha
rg

e;
(d

)
W

he
n 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f d

is
ch

ar
ge

 o
f a

ny
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

 w
hi

ch
 is

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

in
 th

e 
pe

rm
it 

ex
ce

ed
s t

he
 le

ve
l w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 b

as
ed

tre
at

m
en

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
un

de
r 4

0C
FR

 1
25

.3
(c

)(
19

94
);

(e
)

To
 c

or
re

ct
 te

ch
ni

ca
l m

is
ta

ke
s, 

su
ch

 a
s e

rr
or

s i
n 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

, o
r m

is
ta

ke
n 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 la
w

 m
ad

e 
in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
pe

rm
it 

co
nd

iti
on

s;
(f

)
W

he
n 

th
e 

pe
rm

it 
lim

ita
tio

ns
 a

re
 fo

un
d 

no
t t

o 
be

 p
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

of
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s;
 o

r
(g

)
Fo

r a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 c

au
se

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 4

0 
C

FR
 S

ec
tio

ns
 1

22
.6

1,
 1

22
.6

2,
 1

22
.6

3,
 a

nd
 1

22
.6

4 
(1

99
4)

.
2.

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 n
ot

ic
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 o

f r
ul

e 
33

5-
6-

.2
1,

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 m
ay

 te
rm

in
at

e 
th

is
 G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
du

rin
g 

its
 te

rm
 fo

r a
ny

 o
f t

he
 c

au
se

s f
or

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

lis
te

d 
in

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r. 

33
5-

6-
6-

.2
3(

7)
(a

).
3.

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 m
ay

 te
rm

in
at

e 
co

ve
ra

ge
 o

f a
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 u
nd

er
 th

is
 g

en
er

al
 p

er
m

it 
fo

r c
au

se
. C

au
se

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

 b
ut

 n
ot

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

 n
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

ul
es

; o
r a

 fi
nd

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

er
m

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
tro

l w
ith

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 su

ff
ic

ie
nt

ly
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
or

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

tre
at

m
en

t b
as

ed
 li

m
its

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e.
G

.
Pr

op
er

ty
 R

ig
ht

s
Th

is
 p

er
m

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
ve

y 
an

y 
pr

op
er

ty
 ri

gh
ts

 in
 e

ith
er

 re
al

 o
r p

er
so

na
l p

ro
pe

rty
, o

r a
ny

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
 p

riv
ile

ge
s, 

no
r d

oe
s i

t a
ut

ho
riz

e 
an

y 
in

ju
ry

 to
 p

er
so

ns
 o

r
pr

op
er

ty
 o

r i
nv

as
io

n 
of

 o
th

er
 p

riv
at

e 
rig

ht
s, 

or
 a

ny
 in

fr
in

ge
m

en
t o

f f
ed

er
al

, s
ta

te
, o

r l
oc

al
 la

w
s o

r r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, n
or

 d
oe

s i
t a

ut
ho

riz
e 

or
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
hy

si
ca

l s
tru

ct
ur

es
 o

r f
ac

ili
tie

s o
r t

he
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 o

f a
ny

 w
or

k 
in

 a
ny

 w
at

er
s o

f t
he

 st
at

e 
or

 o
f t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

.
H

.
D

ut
y 

to
 P

ro
vi

de
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
1.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l f
ur

ni
sh

 to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
, w

ith
in

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 ti
m

e,
 a

ny
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 m
ay

 re
qu

es
t t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
ex

is
ts

 fo
r m

od
ify

in
g,

 re
vo

ki
ng

 a
nd

 re
-is

su
in

g,
 su

sp
en

di
ng

, o
r t

er
m

in
at

in
g 

th
is

 p
er

m
it 

or
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
is

 P
er

m
it.

 T
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 sh

al
l a

ls
o

fu
rn

is
h 

to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 u

po
n 

re
qu

es
t, 

co
pi

es
 o

f r
ec

or
ds

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
ke

pt
 b

y 
th

is
 P

er
m

it.
2.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l i
nf

or
m

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
of

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
’s

 m
ai

lin
g 

ad
dr

es
s o

r t
el

ep
ho

ne
 n

um
be

r o
r i

n 
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
’s

de
si

gn
at

io
n 

of
 a

 fa
ci

lit
y 

co
nt

ac
t o

r o
ff

ic
er

 h
av

in
g 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 a
ba

te
 v

io
la

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 A

W
PC

A
, t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t’s
 ru

le
s a

nd
th

e 
te

rm
s a

nd
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
no

 la
te

r t
ha

n 
te

n 
(1

0)
 d

ay
s a

fte
r s

uc
h 

ch
an

ge
. U

po
n 

re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

 D
ire

ct
or

, t
he

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l f
ur

ni
sh

 a
n 

up
da

te
 o

f a
ny

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
N

O
I.

3.
If

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 b
ec

om
es

 a
w

ar
e 

th
at

 it
 fa

ile
d 

to
 su

bm
it 

an
y 

re
le

va
nt

 fa
ct

s i
n 

th
e 

N
O

I; 
or

 su
bm

itt
ed

 in
co

rr
ec

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

N
O

I; 
or

 in
 a

ny
 re

po
rt 

to
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
, i

t s
ha

ll 
pr

om
pt

ly
 su

bm
it 

su
ch

 fa
ct

s o
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

w
ith

 a
 w

rit
te

n 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 m
is

ta
ke

 a
nd

/o
r o

m
is

si
on

.
I.

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
E

nt
ry

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l a
llo

w
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
, o

r a
n 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e,

 u
po

n 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 c
re

de
nt

ia
ls

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 a
s m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 la
w

to
:

1.
En

te
r u

po
n 

th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

’s
 p

re
m

is
es

 w
he

re
 a

 re
gu

la
te

d 
ac

tiv
ity

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
or

 c
on

du
ct

ed
, o

r w
he

re
 re

co
rd

s m
us

t b
e 

ke
pt

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

f t
hi

s
Pe

rm
it;

2.
H

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
nd

 c
op

y,
 a

t r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
es

, a
ny

 re
co

rd
s t

ha
t m

us
t b

e 
ke

pt
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s o
f t

hi
s P

er
m

it;
3.

In
sp

ec
t a

t r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
es

 a
ny

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s, 
eq

ui
pm

en
t (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l e

qu
ip

m
en

t),
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

, o
r o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 re
gu

la
te

d 
or

 re
qu

ire
d

un
de

r t
hi

s P
er

m
it;

 a
nd

4.
Sa

m
pl

e 
or

 m
on

ito
r a

t r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
es

, f
or

 th
e 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
f a

ss
ur

in
g 

pe
rm

it 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
or

 a
s o

th
er

w
is

e 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
W

PC
A

, a
ny

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
,

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 o

r p
ar

am
et

er
s a

t a
ny

 lo
ca

tio
n.

J.
N

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n
1.

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
us

t n
ot

ify
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
f, 

fo
r a

ny
 re

as
on

, t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
's 

di
sc

ha
rg

e:
(a

)
Po

te
nt

ia
lly

 th
re

at
en

s h
um

an
 h

ea
lth

 o
r w

el
fa

re
;

(b
)

Po
te

nt
ia

lly
 th

re
at

en
s f

is
h 

or
 a

qu
at

ic
 li

fe
;

(c
)

C
au

se
s a

n 
in

-s
tre

am
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

cr
ite

rio
n 

to
 b

e 
ex

ce
ed

ed
;

(d
)

D
oe

s n
ot

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 to

xi
c 

po
llu

ta
nt

 e
ff

lu
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

d 
or

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

un
de

r S
ec

tio
n 

30
7(

a)
 o

f t
he

 F
W

PC
A

, 3
3 

U
.S

.C
.

§1
31

7(
a)

; o
r

(e
)

C
on

ta
in

s a
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f a
 h

az
ar

do
us

 su
bs

ta
nc

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 m
ay

 b
e 

ha
rm

fu
l t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 o

r w
el

fa
re

 u
nd

er
 S

ec
tio

n 
31

1(
b)

(4
) o

f
th

e 
FW

PC
A

, 3
3 

U
.S

.C
. §

13
21

(b
)(

4)
. T

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 sh
al

l o
ra

lly
 re

po
rt 

th
e 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
s, 

de
sc

rib
in

g 
th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l e

ff
ec

ts
 o

f s
uc

h 
di

sc
ha

rg
e

to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 n

o 
la

te
r t

ha
n 

24
-h

ou
rs

 a
fte

r t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
 b

ec
om

es
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

h 
di

sc
ha

rg
e.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

or
al

 re
po

rt,
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
sh

al
l s

ub
m

it 
to

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 a
 w

rit
te

n 
re

po
rt 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 P

ar
t I

V
.J.

2 
be

lo
w

, n
o 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
fiv

e 
(5

) d
ay

s a
fte

r b
ec

om
in

g 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
oc

cu
rr

en
ce

 o
f s

uc
h

di
sc

ha
rg

e.
2.

Th
e 

w
rit

te
n 

re
po

rt 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

 a
 fo

rm
at

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
nd

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

:
(a

)
A

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
no

nc
om

pl
ia

nt
 e

ve
nt

, i
ts

 c
au

se
, i

f k
no

w
n,

 a
nd

 lo
ca

tio
n;

(b
)

Th
e 

pe
rio

d 
of

 n
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

ac
t d

at
es

 a
nd

 ti
m

es
 o

r, 
if 

no
t c

or
re

ct
ed

, t
he

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
th

e 
no

nc
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

is 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

;
an

d
(c

)
A

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
st

ep
s t

ak
en

 a
nd

/o
r b

ei
ng

 ta
ke

n 
to

 re
du

ce
 o

r e
lim

in
at

e 
th

e 
no

nc
om

pl
yi

ng
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 a
nd

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 it

s r
ec

ur
re

nc
e.

K
.

R
et

en
tio

n 
of

 R
ec

or
ds

1.
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l r

et
ai

n 
re

co
rd

s o
f a

ll 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
co

rd
s, 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

al
l c

al
ib

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 re

co
rd

s a
nd

 a
ll 

or
ig

in
al

st
rip

 c
ha

rt 
re

co
rd

in
gs

 fo
r c

on
tin

uo
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

st
ru

m
en

ta
tio

n,
 c

op
ie

s o
f a

ll 
re

po
rts

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
pe

rm
it,

 a
nd

 re
co

rd
s o

f a
ll 

da
ta

 u
se

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
su

ch
re

po
rts

, f
or

 a
 p

er
io

d 
of

 a
t l

ea
st

 th
re

e 
(3

) y
ea

rs
 fr

om
 th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n,
 sa

m
pl

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t, 

or
 re

po
rt.

 T
hi

s p
er

io
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 b
y 

re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

D
ire

ct
or

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e.

 If
 li

tig
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ct

io
n,

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
A

W
PC

A
 a

nd
/o

r t
he

 F
W

PC
A

, i
s o

ng
oi

ng
 w

hi
ch

 in
vo

lv
es

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
se

 re
co

rd
s, 

th
e

re
co

rd
s s

ha
ll 

be
 k

ep
t u

nt
il 

th
e 

lit
ig

at
io

n 
is

 re
so

lv
ed

.
2.

A
ll 

re
co

rd
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
ke

pt
 fo

r a
 p

er
io

d 
of

 th
re

e 
(3

) y
ea

rs
 sh

al
l b

e 
ke

pt
 a

t t
he

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 th

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
n 

w
rit

in
g 

an
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

up
on

 re
qu

es
t.

Si
gn

at
or

y 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Th
e 

N
O

I a
nd

 a
ll 

re
po

rts
 o

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 sh
al

l b
e 

si
gn

ed
 a

nd
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r.

33
5-

6-
6-

.0
9.

 W
he

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
is

 P
er

m
it,

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 si

gn
ed

 b
y 

a 
Q

C
P 

or
 Q

C
I.

L
.

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
Th

is
 P

er
m

it 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
tra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
or

 re
vo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
re

is
su

an
ce

 o
f t

hi
s P

er
m

it.
 In

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

ch
an

ge
 in

 n
am

e,
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
or

 c
on

tro
l o

f t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
’s

 p
re

m
is

es
, a

 re
qu

es
t f

or
 p

er
m

it 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
in

 a
 fo

rm
at

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

at
 le

as
t

30
 d

ay
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

.
M

.
B

yp
as

s
A

ny
 b

yp
as

s o
f e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tro

ls
, s

ed
im

en
t c

on
tro

ls
, o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 st

or
m

w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t/t
re

at
m

en
t c

on
tro

ls
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
B

M
PP

 is
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

 C
od

e 
r. 

33
5-

6-
6-

.1
2(

m
).

N
.

U
ps

et
1.

Ef
fe

ct
 o

f a
n 

U
ps

et
. A

n 
up

se
t c

on
st

itu
te

s a
n 

af
fir

m
at

iv
e 

de
fe

ns
e 

to
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

br
ou

gh
t f

or
 n

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 b
as

ed
 p

er
m

it 
lim

ita
tio

n 
if 

th
e

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f s

ub
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

33
5-

6-
6-

.1
2(

n)
2.

 a
re

 m
et

.
2.

C
on

di
tio

ns
 N

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r D

em
on

st
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
U

ps
et

. A
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 w
ho

 w
is

he
s t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

th
e 

af
fir

m
at

iv
e 

de
fe

ns
e 

of
 a

n 
up

se
t s

ha
ll 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
op

er
ly

 si
gn

ed
, c

on
te

m
po

ra
ne

ou
s o

pe
ra

tin
g 

lo
gs

, o
r o

th
er

 re
le

va
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
:

(a
)

A
n 

up
se

t o
cc

ur
re

d 
an

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 c

an
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ca

us
e(

s)
 o

f t
he

 u
ps

et
;

(b
)

Th
e 

w
as

te
w

at
er

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
ac

ili
ty

 w
as

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

be
in

g 
pr

op
er

ly
 o

pe
ra

te
d;

(c
)

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 su
bm

itt
ed

 n
ot

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
up

se
t a

s r
eq

ui
re

d 
in

 su
bp

ar
ag

ra
ph

 3
35

-6
-6

-.1
2(

l)6
.; 

an
d

(d
)

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
 a

ny
 re

m
ed

ia
l m

ea
su

re
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

un
de

r p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 3

35
-6

-6
-.1

2(
d)

.
3.

B
ur

de
n 

of
 P

ro
of

. I
n 

an
y 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ed
in

g 
th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 se

ek
in

g 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
oc

cu
rr

en
ce

 o
f a

n 
up

se
t h

as
 th

e 
bu

rd
en

 o
f p

ro
of

.
P.

Se
ve

ra
bi

lit
y

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

ar
e 

se
ve

ra
bl

e,
 a

nd
 if

 a
ny

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

or
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

to
 a

ny
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
 is

 h
el

d
in

va
lid

, t
he

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 su

ch
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 to
 o

th
er

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s, 
an

d 
th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 th

er
eb

y.
Q

.
Is

su
an

ce
 o

f a
n 

In
di

vi
du

al
 P

er
m

it
Th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

er
m

it 
fo

r d
is

ch
ar

ge
s c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 p

er
m

it 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

. C
od

e 
r.

33
5-

6-
6-

.2
3(

9)
.

R
.

R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

In
di

vi
du

al
 P

er
m

it 
by

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it 

H
ol

de
r

1.
A

ny
 p

er
so

n 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
is

 G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it 

m
ay

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
by

 a
pp

ly
in

g 
fo

r a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 N

PD
ES

 p
er

m
it.

 A
 p

er
m

it 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
su

bm
itt

ed
 v

ol
un

ta
ril

y 
or

 a
t t

he
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

by
 th

is
 G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e
w

ith
 th

e 
ru

le
s f

ou
nd

 in
 A

D
EM

 A
dm

in
. C

od
e 

ch
. 3

35
-6

-6
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
er

m
its

.
2.

A
ny

 p
er

so
n 

m
ay

 p
et

iti
on

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 fo
r w

ith
dr

aw
al

 o
f t

hi
s G

en
er

al
 P

er
m

it 
au

th
or

ity
 fr

om
 a

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
r. 

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 sh
al

l c
on

si
de

r t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

su
bm

itt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pe
tit

io
ne

r a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
he

 m
ay

 b
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
nd

 m
ay

 o
bt

ai
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
er

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 b

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t s
ta

ff
 a

nd
 sh

al
l d

ec
id

e 
if 

co
ve

ra
ge

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

ith
dr

aw
n.

 T
he

 p
et

iti
on

er
 sh

al
l b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f t
he

 D
ire

ct
or

’s
 d

ec
is

io
n 

an
d 

sh
al

l b
e

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
 su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.
S.

T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 C
ov

er
ag

e
Th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 m

ay
 su

sp
en

d 
or

 te
rm

in
at

e 
co

ve
ra

ge
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 p
er

m
it 

fo
r c

au
se

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 c

on
se

nt
 o

f t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
. C

au
se

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

, b
ut

 n
ot

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

no
nc

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

er
m

it 
or

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

ul
es

, o
r a

 fi
nd

in
g 

th
at

 th
is

 p
er

m
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

tro
l t

he
 st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
ly

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y.

1.
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 T
er

m
in

at
io

n
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
a 

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 T

er
m

in
at

io
n 

(N
O

T)
 in

 a
 fo

rm
at

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t w
ith

in
 th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 d
ay

s o
f o

ne
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g
co

nd
iti

on
s:

(a
)

Fi
na

l s
ta

bi
liz

at
io

n 
as

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 P

ar
t V

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 o

n 
al

l p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 si

te
;

(b
)

A
no

th
er

 o
pe

ra
to

r h
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 c
on

tro
l o

ve
r a

ll 
ar

ea
s o

f t
he

 si
te

 th
at

 h
av

e 
no

t a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fin

al
 st

ab
ili

za
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

w
 o

pe
ra

to
r h

as
 su

bm
itt

ed
 a

n 
N

O
I

fo
r c

ov
er

ag
e 

un
de

r t
hi

s p
er

m
it;

 o
r

(c
)

C
ov

er
ag

e 
un

de
r a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
er

m
it 

or
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
er

m
it 

ha
s b

ee
n 

ob
ta

in
ed

.
2.

C
on

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 T
er

m
in

at
io

n
Th

e 
N

O
T 

sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

:
(a

)
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 n

am
e,

 p
er

m
it 

nu
m

be
r, 

an
d 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
si

te
; a

nd
(b

)
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

by
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 a

nd
 th

e 
Q

C
P 

th
at

 a
ll 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 p

er
m

it 
ha

s b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 fi
na

l s
ta

bi
liz

at
io

n 
ha

s b
ee

n
ac

hi
ev

ed
; o

r
(c

)
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
e 

co
nt

ac
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n,

 o
f t

he
 p

er
so

n 
th

at
 h

as
 a

ss
um

ed
 le

ga
l o

r o
pe

ra
tio

na
l c

on
tro

l o
ve

r t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
si

te
.

(i)
Lo

ss
 o

f o
pe

ra
tio

na
l c

on
tro

l d
oe

s n
ot

 re
lie

ve
 th

e 
op

er
at

or
 fr

om
 li

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
un

til
 th

e
co

m
pl

et
e 

an
d 

co
rr

ec
t r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
is

 re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

(ii
)

Sa
le

 o
r t

ra
ns

fe
r o

f o
pe

ra
tio

na
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r t

he
 si

te
 b

y 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
su

cc
ee

di
ng

 o
pe

ra
to

r o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 p

er
m

it 
co

ve
ra

ge
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
is

ch
ap

te
r, 

do
es

 n
ot

 re
lie

ve
 th

e 
op

er
at

or
 fr

om
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s p
er

m
it

T
.

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n
Th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 sh

al
l p

os
t a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

si
gn

(s
) a

t t
he

 fr
on

t g
at

e/
en

tra
nc

e,
 a

nd
 if

 u
til

ity
 in

st
al

la
tio

n,
 w

he
re

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
ro

ss
es

 p
av

ed
 c

ou
nt

y,
 S

ta
te

, o
r f

ed
er

al
hi

gh
w

ay
s/

ro
ad

s, 
an

d/
or

 a
t o

th
er

 e
as

ily
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

n(
s)

 to
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
si

te
 p

rio
r t

o 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f a

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
N

PD
ES

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
un

til
pe

rm
it 

co
ve

ra
ge

 is
 p

ro
pe

rly

te
rm

in
at

ed
. S

uc
h 

si
gn

 sh
al

l d
is

pl
ay

 th
e 

na
m

e 
of

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

, “
A

D
EM

 N
PD

ES
 A

LR
10

” 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
fiv

e 
di

gi
t N

PD
ES

 p
er

m
it 

nu
m

be
r,

fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 p

ro
je

ct
 n

am
e,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 d

es
cr

ip
tiv

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
de

em
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 b
y 

th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

.
U

.
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

Th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 sh
al

l a
ch

ie
ve

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s p

er
m

it 
on

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
da

te
 o

f c
ov

er
ag

e 
un

de
r t

hi
s p

er
m

it.
V

.
D

is
ch

ar
ge

 o
f W

as
te

w
at

er
 G

en
er

at
ed

 b
y 

O
th

er
s

Th
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
pr

oc
es

s, 
fa

ci
lit

y,
 o

r b
y 

an
y 

ot
he

r m
ea

ns
 n

ot
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l c

on
tro

l o
f t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

 o
r n

ot
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r t
hi

s p
er

m
it 

or
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 in

 th
e 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

ou
tfa

ll 
in

 th
is

 p
er

m
it 

is 
no

t a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
th

is
pe

rm
it 

ex
ce

pt
 a

s a
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

Pa
rt 

I.
W

.
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

St
an

da
rd

s a
nd

 O
th

er
 P

ro
vi

si
on

s
1.

O
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s o
f t

he
 P

er
m

itt
ee

's 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n,
 p

la
ns

, o
r o

th
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t h
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e

te
rm

s a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s P
er

m
it 

w
ill

 a
ss

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s. 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s P

er
m

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 re

lie
ve

 th
e

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 fr
om

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 S

ta
te

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 A
D

EM
 A

dm
in

. C
od

e 
ch

. 3
35

-6
-1

0,
 a

nd
 d

oe
s n

ot
 p

re
cl

ud
e

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

ro
m

 ta
ki

ng
 a

ct
io

n 
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 c

on
tra

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 S
ta

te
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

sta
nd

ar
ds

 w
hi

ch
co

ul
d 

re
su

lt 
fr

om
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

s o
f p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 fa

ci
lit

y.
2.

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
er

m
it 

te
rm

s a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 n

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
, i

f t
he

 P
er

m
itt

ee
's 

di
sc

ha
rg

e(
s)

 c
au

se
(s

) o
r c

on
tri

bu
te

(s
) t

o 
a 

co
nd

iti
on

 in
co

nt
ra

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 S

ta
te

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s, 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 a
ba

te
m

en
t a

ct
io

n 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
by

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

, m
od

ify
 th

e 
Pe

rm
it

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t's
 ru

le
s a

nd
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, o
r b

ot
h.

3.
If

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t d

et
er

m
in

es
, o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s o

f a
ny

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n,
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 o
r s

am
pl

in
g,

 th
at

 a
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 P
er

m
it 

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
as

su
re

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s o
r c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s o

f t
he

 A
W

PC
A

 o
r F

W
PC

A
, t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 su

ch
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
an

d,
 in

 c
as

es
 o

f e
m

er
ge

nc
y,

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 m
ay

 p
ro

hi
bi

t t
he

 n
ot

ic
ed

 a
ct

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
Pe

rm
it 

ha
s b

ee
n 

m
od

ifi
ed

.
X

.
C

iv
il 

an
d 

C
ri

m
in

al
 L

ia
bi

lit
y

1.
Ta

m
pe

rin
g:

 A
ny

 p
er

so
n 

w
ho

 fa
ls

ifi
es

, t
am

pe
rs

 w
ith

, o
r k

no
w

in
gl

y 
re

nd
er

s i
na

cc
ur

at
e 

an
y 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
de

vi
ce

 o
r m

et
ho

d 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

or
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

is
 P

er
m

it 
sh

al
l, 

up
on

 c
on

vi
ct

io
n,

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
pe

na
lti

es
 a

nd
/o

r i
m

pr
is

on
m

en
t a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

A
W

PC
A

an
d/

or
 th

e 
A

EM
A

.
2.

Fa
ls

e 
St

at
em

en
ts

: A
ny

 p
er

so
n 

w
ho

 k
no

w
in

gl
y 

m
ak

es
 a

ny
 fa

ls
e 

st
at

em
en

t, 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n,

 o
r c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

in
 a

ny
 re

co
rd

 o
r o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

t
su

bm
itt

ed
 o

r r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

un
de

r t
hi

s P
er

m
it,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rts
 o

r r
ep

or
ts

 o
f c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
or

 n
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

sh
al

l, 
up

on
co

nv
ic

tio
n,

 b
e 

pu
ni

sh
ed

 a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 S
ta

te
 a

nd
 F

ed
er

al
 la

w
.

3.
Pe

rm
it 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t: 

Th
is

 N
PD

ES
 P

er
m

it 
is

 a
 P

er
m

it 
fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

he
 A

W
PC

A
, t

he
 A

EM
A

, a
nd

 th
e 

FW
PC

A
, a

nd
 a

s s
uc

h 
al

l t
er

m
s,

co
nd

iti
on

s, 
or

 li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s P
er

m
it 

ar
e 

en
fo

rc
ea

bl
e 

un
de

r S
ta

te
 a

nd
 F

ed
er

al
 la

w
.

4.
R

el
ie

f F
ro

m
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 E
xc

ep
t a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 P
ar

t I
V

.M
. (

B
yp

as
s)

 a
nd

 P
ar

t I
V

.N
. (

U
ps

et
), 

no
th

in
g 

in
 th

is
 P

er
m

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

ns
tru

ed
 to

re
lie

ve
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 o

f c
iv

il 
or

 c
rim

in
al

 li
ab

ili
ty

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
A

W
PC

A
, A

EM
A

, o
r F

W
PC

A
 fo

r n
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
ny

 te
rm

 o
r c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 th

is
Pe

rm
it.

Y
.

O
il 

an
d 

H
az

ar
do

us
 S

ub
st

an
ce

 L
ia

bi
lit

y
N

ot
hi

ng
 in

 th
is

 P
er

m
it 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
ns

tru
ed

 to
 p

re
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

in
st

itu
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 le
ga

l a
ct

io
n 

or
 re

lie
ve

 th
e 

Pe
rm

itt
ee

 fr
om

 a
ny

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s,

lia
bi

lit
ie

s, 
or

 p
en

al
tie

s t
o 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ee
 is

 o
r m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

un
de

r S
ec

tio
n 

31
1 

of
 th

e 
FW

PC
A

, 3
3 

U
.S

.C
. §

13
21

.

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



S
O

IL
 N

A
M

E

S
O

IL
 L

E
G

E
N

D

H
Y

D
R

O
LO

G
IC

 S
O

IL
 G

R
O

U
P

B
H

O
LS

T
O

N
-U

R
B

A
N

 L
A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

LE
X

 2
 T

O
 8

P
E

R
C

E
N

T
 S

LO
P

E
S

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901



K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



- 
F

E
R

T
IL

IZ
E

R
:

  S
po

t s
ee

di
ng

 c
an

 b
e 

do
ne

 o
n 

sm
al

l a
re

as
 to

 fi
ll 

in
 b

ar
e 

sp
ot

s 
w

he
re

 g
ra

ss
 d

id
 n

ot
 g

ro
w

 

  I
f t

he
 s

ee
de

d 
ar

ea
 is

 d
am

ag
ed

 d
ue

 to
 r

un
of

f, 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

to
rm

w
at

er
 m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
. 

  N
ew

ly
 s

ee
de

d 
ar

ea
s 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
in

sp
ec

te
d 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

gr
as

s 
is

 g
ro

w
in

g.
 

  A
pp

ly
 m

ul
ch

 o
r 

er
os

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l b

la
nk

et
, a

s 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
, o

ve
r 

th
e 

se
ed

ed
 a

re
as

. I
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

an
d 

  A
pp

ly
 fe

rt
ili

ze
r 

as
 s

pe
ci

fie
d.

th
en

 li
gh

tly
 c

om
pa

ct
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

oo
d 

se
ed

-s
oi

l c
on

ta
ct

.

  B
ro

ad
ca

st
 s

ee
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
so

il 
by

 r
ak

in
g 

or
 c

ha
in

 d
ra

gg
in

g,
 a

nd

m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l d

ril
ls

, o
r 

hy
dr

os
ee

de
r 

so
 th

e 
se

ed
 is

 a
pp

lie
d 

un
ifo

rm
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

si
te

  A
pp

ly
 s

ee
d 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
s 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 u
si

ng
 c

al
ib

ra
te

d 
se

ed
 s

pr
ea

de
rs

, c
yc

lo
ne

 s
ee

de
rs

,

  A
lw

ay
s 

ap
pl

y 
se

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 m

ul
ch

. 

S
ee

d 
to

 s
oi

l c
on

ta
ct

 is
 th

e 
ke

y 
to

 g
oo

d 
ge

rm
in

at
io

n.

  H
ar

ro
w

in
g,

 tr
ac

ki
ng

 o
r 

fu
rr

ow
in

g 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

do
ne

 h
or

iz
on

ta
lly

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

fa
ce

 o
f t

he
 s

lo
pe

. 

eq
ui

pm
en

t d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 th

e 
so

il 
fo

r 
se

ed
in

g.
 

to
ps

oi
l s

ho
ul

d 
be

 h
ar

ro
w

ed
 w

ith
 a

 d
is

k,
 s

pr
in

g 
to

ot
h 

dr
ag

, s
pi

ke
 to

ot
h 

dr
ag

, o
r 

ot
he

r

m
oi

st
. I

f t
he

 s
ee

db
ed

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
id

le
 lo

ng
 e

no
ug

h 
fo

r 
th

e 
so

il 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

co
m

pa
ct

, t
he

  S
ee

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
fte

r 
se

ed
be

d 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

so
il 

is
 lo

os
e 

an
d

  S
ee

d 
to

 s
oi

l c
on

ta
ct

 is
 th

e 
ke

y 
to

 g
oo

d 
ge

rm
in

at
io

n.

cr
os

s 
se

ct
io

ns
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e 

gr
ad

in
g 

pl
an

s.
 

  T
he

 to
ps

oi
l s

ur
fa

ce
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 in
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
cl

os
e 

co
nf

or
m

ity
 to

 th
e 

lin
es

, g
ra

de
s 

an
d

lo
os

e,
 m

oi
st

 a
nd

 fr
ee

 o
f l

ar
ge

 c
lo

ds
 a

nd
 s

to
ne

s.
  

  T
he

 s
ee

db
ed

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 fi

rm
 b

ut
 n

ot
 c

om
pa

ct
.  

T
he

 to
p 

th
re

e 
in

ch
es

 o
f s

oi
l s

ho
ul

d 
be

  P
re

pa
re

 a
 3

-5
 in

ch
 (

76
-1

27
 m

m
) 

de
ep

 s
ee

db
ed

, w
ith

 th
e 

to
p 

3-
4 

in
ch

es
 (

76
-1

02
 m

m
)

  A
pp

ly
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 a

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 a

dj
us

t p
H

 to
 6

.0
-7

.5
.  

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
es

e 
am

en
dm

en
ts

tr
ac

ki
ng

, g
ro

ov
in

g 
or

 fu
rr

ow
in

g.

  C
on

du
ct

 s
oi

l t
es

t t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
pH

 a
nd

 n
ut

rie
nt

 c
on

te
nt

.  
R

ou
gh

en
 th

e 
so

il 
by

 h
ar

ro
w

in
g,

 

  D
iv

er
t c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
d 

flo
w

s 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
se

ed
ed

 a
re

a.
 

  B
rin

g 
th

e 
pl

an
tin

g 
ar

ea
 to

 fi
na

l g
ra

de
 a

nd
 in

st
al

l t
he

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 e

ro
si

on
 c

on
tr

ol
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

. 

  U
se

 s
ee

d 
ra

te
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 p
ur

e 
liv

e 
se

ed
 (

P
LS

) 
of

 8
0%

.  
W

he
n 

P
LS

 is
 b

el
ow

 8
0%

  U
se

 a
 s

ee
d 

bl
en

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
nu

al
s,

 p
er

en
ni

al
s 

an
d 

le
gu

m
es

.

  C
on

su
lt 

lo
ca

l a
gr

on
om

is
t o

r 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l s
pe

ci
al

is
ts

 fo
r 

se
ed

 m
ix

.

  U
se

 s
ee

ds
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 th
e 

se
as

on
 a

nd
 s

ite
 c

on
di

tio
ns

.

  U
se

 d
or

m
an

t s
ee

di
ng

 fo
r 

la
te

 fa
ll 

or
 w

in
te

r 
se

ed
in

g 
sc

he
du

le
s.

 

  A
pp

ly
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ee

di
ng

 b
ef

or
e 

se
as

on
al

 r
ai

ns
 o

r 
fr

ee
zi

ng
 w

ea
th

er
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

. 

  T
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
op

tim
um

 s
ee

di
ng

 s
ch

ed
ul

e,
 c

on
su

lt 
a 

lo
ca

l a
gr

on
om

is
t o

r 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l 

  A
pp

ly
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ee

di
ng

 w
he

n 
no

 fu
rt

he
r 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
es

 a
re

 p
la

nn
ed

. 

  A
pp

ly
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ee

di
ng

 o
n 

ar
ea

s 
le

ft 
do

rm
an

t f
or

 1
 y

ea
r 

or
 m

or
e.

 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

:

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

:

pr
op

er
ly

.

P
la

nt
in

g:

co
ns

is
tin

g 
of

 to
ps

oi
l.

in
to

 th
e 

so
il.

S
ite

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n:

ad
ju

st
 r

at
es

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

.

S
ee

d 
M

ix
es

:

sp
ec

ia
lis

t. 

T
im

in
g:

N
.T

.S
.

N
O

TE
S:

“
”

N
.T

.S
.

R
O

U
N

D
 F

R
A

M
E 

&
 F

IL
TE

R
 A

SS
EM

B
LY

M
od

el
 #

 R
-1

00
A

N
.T

.S
.

N
.T

.S
.

C
on

cr
et

e 
W

as
ho

ut
 A

re
a 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

N
ot

es
1.

  S
ee

 p
la

n 
vi

ew
 fo

r 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 o

f c
on

cr
et

e 
w

as
ho

ut
 a

re
a.

2.
  T

he
 c

on
cr

et
e 

w
as

ho
ut

 a
re

a 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
ny

 c
on

cr
et

e 
pl

ac
em

en
t o

n 
si

te
 o

r 
on

 th
e

pr
oj

ec
t.

3.
  V

eh
ic

le
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 c

on
tr

ol
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
at

 th
e 

ac
ce

ss
 p

oi
nt

.
4.

  S
ig

ns
 s

ha
ll 

be
 p

la
ce

d 
at

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

en
tr

an
ce

, a
t t

he
 w

as
ho

ut
 a

re
a,

 a
nd

 e
ls

ew
he

re
 a

s
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 c

le
ar

ly
 in

di
ca

te
 th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
nc

re
te

 w
as

ho
ut

 a
re

a 
to

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 o

f c
on

cr
et

e 
tr

uc
ks

an
d 

pu
m

p 
rig

s.
5.

  E
xc

av
at

ed
 m

at
er

ia
l s

ha
ll 

be
 u

til
iz

ed
 in

 th
e 

pe
rim

et
er

 b
er

m
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

6.
  P

or
ta

bl
e 

co
nc

re
te

 w
as

ho
ut

s 
ar

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

s 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

e 
so

lu
tio

n 
to

 h
av

in
g 

a 
pe

rm
an

en
t s

tr
uc

tu
re

.
C

on
cr

et
e 

W
as

ho
ut

 A
re

a 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 N

ot
es

1.
  T

he
 c

on
cr

et
e 

w
as

ho
ut

 a
re

a 
sh

al
l b

e 
re

pa
ire

d 
an

d 
en

la
rg

ed
 o

r 
cl

ea
ne

d 
ou

t a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n
ca

pa
ci

ty
 fo

r 
w

as
te

d 
co

nc
re

te
.

2.
  A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 a
ll 

co
nc

re
te

 s
ha

ll 
be

 r
em

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 d
is

po
se

d 
of

 a
t a

n
ap

pr
ov

ed
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 la

nd
fil

l b
y 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
.

3.
  W

he
n 

th
e 

co
nc

re
te

 w
as

ho
ut

 a
re

a 
is

 r
em

ov
ed

, c
ov

er
 th

e 
di

st
ur

be
d 

ar
e 

w
ith

 c
le

an
 to

ps
oi

l, 
se

ed
 a

nd
m

ul
ch

.

N
.T

.S
.

N
.T

.S
.

N
.T

.S
.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901





U
T

IL
IT

Y
 L

E
G

E
N

D













































































































































































1.
T

R
A

F
F

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

D
E

V
IC

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 U
T

IL
IZ

E
D

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

M
A

N
U

A
L 

O
N

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L 
D

E
V

IC
E

S
 F

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 A

N
D

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
.

D
E

V
IC

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IM
P

LE
M

E
N

T
E

D
 F

O
LL

O
W

IN
G

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

'S
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 G
U

ID
E

LI
N

E
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

.

B
W

W
B

 N
O

TE
S:

1.
A

LL
 F

IR
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
: B

irm
in

gh
am

 W
at

er
 W

or
ks

 B
oa

rd
 w

ill
 in

st
al

l t
ap

pi
ng

 s
le

ev
e 

an
d 

va
lv

e.
  A

 D
ev

el
op

er
In

st
al

l c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
us

t b
e 

hi
re

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
A

LL
 d

ig
gi

n 
an

d 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
up

 to
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

m
ag

ne
tic

flo
w

 m
et

er
 v

au
lts

.
2.

T
he

 W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

 c
on

du
ct

s 
fu

ll 
in

st
al

ls
 o

n 
4”

 a
nd

 la
rg

er
 d

om
es

tic
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

3.
D

om
es

tic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
/o

r 
fir

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ba

ck
flo

w
 p

re
ve

nt
er

 a
ss

em
bl

y 
m

us
t b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y.

T
he

 B
ac

kf
lo

w
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

e 
sp

ec
ia

l c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

n 
a 

ca
se

 b
y 

ca
se

 b
as

is
.

4.
T

he
 c

us
to

m
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

ki
lli

ng
 A

LL
 e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
si

m
ul

ta
ne

ou
sl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

.  
  A

ny
 e

xi
st

in
g

an
d 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
us

t b
e 

ki
lle

d 
at

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
an

d 
in

sp
ec

te
d 

by
 B

W
W

B
 p

er
so

nn
el

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

ne
w

se
rv

ic
e(

s)
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

tiv
at

ed
. A

ny
 e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
re

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

cu
st

om
er

 m
us

t b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e

w
at

er
 B

oa
rd

's
 M

et
er

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

nd
 b

ro
ug

ht
 u

p 
to

 c
ur

re
nt

 W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
  

N
O

 E
XC

EP
TI

O
N

S.
5.

T
he

 d
om

es
tic

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

/o
r 

fir
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ba
ck

flo
w

 p
re

ve
nt

er
 a

ss
em

bl
y 

m
us

t N
O

T
 B

E
 IN

S
T

A
LL

E
D

 u
nt

il 
th

e
m

ag
ne

tic
 fl

ow
 m

et
er

 a
ss

em
bl

y 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
is

 c
om

pl
et

e.
  

T
he

 c
us

to
m

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

an
y

ba
ck

flo
w

 p
re

ve
nt

er
 a

ss
em

bl
y 

in
 c

on
fli

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 m

ag
ne

tic
 fl

ow
 m

et
er

 a
ss

em
bl

y 
(n

o
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

).
  

A
ny

 c
os

t a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 a
nd

 re
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 b

ac
kf

lo
w

 p
re

ve
nt

er
as

se
m

bl
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

cu
st

om
er

 a
nd

 n
ot

 th
e 

W
at

er
 B

oa
rd

.
6.

T
he

 fi
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

/o
r 

do
m

es
tic

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
ag

ne
tic

 fl
ow

 m
et

er
 v

au
lts

 m
us

t h
av

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
A

N
D

 e
le

va
tio

n
st

ak
es

 m
ar

ke
d 

on
 s

ite
 b

ef
or

e 
B

W
W

B
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ta
p 

an
d 

se
t t

he
 v

au
lt(

s)
. T

he
 o

w
ne

r 
or

 h
is

/h
er

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
M

U
ST

 s
ig

n 
th

e 
B

W
W

B
 fo

rm
 th

at
 s

ta
te

s 
th

e 
va

ul
ts

 a
re

 s
et

 a
t t

he
 p

ro
pe

r 
lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d
el

ev
at

io
n.

 A
ny

 c
os

t a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 a
nd

 re
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 m

ag
ne

tic
 fl

ow
 m

et
er

 v
au

lt
w

ill
 b

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 a

nd
 n

ot
 th

e 
W

at
er

 B
oa

rd
.

7.
B

W
W

B
 w

ill
 N

O
T 

m
ak

e 
an

y 
fie

ld
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

dr
aw

in
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 B
W

W
B

 p
er

so
nn

el
. I

f a
fie

ld
 c

ha
ng

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d,
 y

ou
 m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
a 

ne
w

 d
ra

w
in

g 
to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

oo
rd

in
at

or
 in

 S
ys

te
m

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t v
ia

 e
m

ai
l a

nd
 r

es
ch

ed
ul

e 
yo

ur
 ta

p.
 N

O
 E

XC
EP

TI
O

N
S.

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's

 b
el

ow
C

al
l b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
di

g.
D

ia
l 8

11
O

r 
C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2901


	2019_1125CC_A
	2019_1113CC_M
	Proclamation
	Resolution 5202
	Ordinance 2502A
	Ordinance 2885
	Ordinance 2886
	Ordinance 2887
	Ordinance 2888
	Ordinance 2889
	Ordinance 2890
	Ordinance 2891
	Ordinance 2892
	Ordinance 2893
	Ordinance 2894
	Ordinance 2895
	Ordinance 2896
	Ordinance 2897
	Ordinance 2899
	Resolution 5206
	Ordinance 2902
	Resolution 5207
	Ordinance 2900
	Ordinance 2901



